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Townchips of Union Public Schsole

December 31, 2020

The Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

Township of Union School District

Union County, New Jersey

Dear Board Members;

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the Township of Union School District (the
“District”) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 is hereby submitted. This CAFR includes the District's
Basic Financial Statements prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
for governmental entities as established by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.
Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and completeness and fairness of the presentation,
including all disclosures, rests with the management of the Township of Union Schoot District. To the
best of our knowledge and belief, the data presented in this report is accurate in all material respects and
is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the
various funds of the District. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of
the District's financial activities have been included.

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in four sections as follows:

-The Introductory Section includes this transmittal letter, the District's organizational chart and a
list of principal officials.

-The Financial Section begins with the Independent Auditors’ Report and includss the
Management's Discussion and Analysis, the Basic Financial Statements and Notes providing an
overview of the School District's financial position and operating results, and other schedules
providing detailed budgetary information.

-The Statistical Section includes selected financial and demographic information, generally
presented on a multi-year basis.

-The Single Audit Section - The District is required to underge an annual single audit in conformity
with the provisions of the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1986, P.L. 104 - 156 and the Uniform
Guidance and the New Jersey OMB's Circular 15-08, "Single Audit Policy for Recipients of
Federal Grants, State Grants, and State Aid Payments." Information related {o this single audit,
including the auditor's report on the internal control structure and compliance with applicable laws
and regulations and findings and recommendations, are inciuded in the single audit section of this
report.

1. REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES: The Township of Union School District is an independent
reporting enfity within the criteria adopted by the GASB as established by GASB Statement No. 14.. All
funds of the District are included in this report. The Township of Union School District and all its schools
constitute the District's reporting entity.

The District provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels PRE-K through 12.
These include regular as well as special education for handicapped youngsters.

2. ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK: The Township of Union, in the County of Union, is
experiencing a period of economic stability and modest but steady growth. This outlook mirrors that of
the region {Northeastern Unite States} itself. The Township’s proximity to transportation and employment
centers in New York City and Northern NJ contributes towards maintaining this outlook. Within Union
County, the unemployment rate of below 4& is lower than the national average and the employment
outlook is strong for those entering the workforce. Residential, commercial and industrial properties
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continue to see increases in values, with room for further growth. Foreclosures have leveled off.
Development within the Township is strong. There are two major multi-phased mixed use developments
in the Township which are in construction and will further improve the local economic conditions. Studies
have shown that these types of transit oriented and downtown development do not attract many school
age children and the rentals to date have been consistent with those studies. The major commercial tax
appeals have leveled off. Union Train Station and the surrounding transit-oriented area will continue to
demonstrate great economic growth. The Township remains well positioned for continued economic
stability and steady growth.

3. MAJOR INITIATIVES:

Initiative One - The Township of Union School District Leadership Professional Development: The District
is committed to ensure all district leaders are provided professional development and executive level
training for continuous improvement in achievement of all students. District Principals will attend five
professional development series at Rutgers Institute for Improving Student Achievement. The objective is
to renew the focus of helping teachers to teach at their best, support students to learn fo their utmost, and
provide administrators the opportunities to become better leaders.

Initiative Two - The Township of Union School District will ensure equity and access to quality instruction:
Curriculum and Instruction: We are prepared to teach all students. Provide pathways for student
achisvement, and embedding equity in the curriculum to support social and emotional learning, cultural
competence, and socio-political consciousness. The district implemented new courses at the middle and
high school to address the learning interest of students and to ensure all students achieve positive
learning experiences.

Initiative Three - The Township of Union School District will continue the implementation of Social
Emotional Learning {SEL). NJ PBSIS will provide professional development for building administrators.
Building administrators will share PB SIS information with their staff to support the implementation of tired
interventions for a range of school intervention needs that includes conduct, behavior and social and
emotional wellness. The continued implementation of Response to intervention (RTI) will help support
every student academically and enhance the support of PB SIS.

Initiative Four - The Township of Union School District will continue to build positive public relations with
the community and invested stakeholders. Involve two way communications between the community and
the school district will continue to build a stronger feet of trust and confidence in the school communities.
The objective remains to always foster a positive outlook of our schools throughout the community.

4. INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS: Management of the District is responsible for establishing
and maintaining an internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the District are
protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow
for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP). The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that; {1) there are limited
resources and that the cost of a control shouid not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the
valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the District also is responsible for ensuring that an
adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable iaws and regulations
related to those programs. This internal control structure is also subject to periodic evaluation by the
District management. As part of the District's single audit described earlier, tests are made to determine
the adequacy of the internal structure, including that portion related to federal and state financial
assistance programs, as well as to determine that the District has complied with applicable laws and
regulations.



5. BUDGETARY CONTROLS: In addition to internal accounting controls, the District maintains
budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal
provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the voters of the municipality.
Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general fund, the special revenue fund and the debt
service fund. Amendments to the line items within these funds are approved by the Superintendent and
subsequently ratified by the Board of Education, in accordance with state statute and Board Policy.

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a line item
basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either canceled or are included as reappropriations of fund
balance in the subsequent year. Those amounts to be reappropriated are reported as reservations of
fund balance at June 30, 2020.

6. ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS: The District's accounting records reflect generally
accepted accounting principles, as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Beard
{GASB). The accounting system of the District is organized on the basis of funds which are explained in
"Notes to the Financial Statements," Note 1.

7. CASH MANAGENMENT: The investment policy of the District is guided in large part by state statute as
detailed in "Notes to the Financial Statements," Note 2. The District's cash management plan allows it to
deposit public funds in public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental
Unit Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 and updated in 2008 to protect
Governmental Units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey. The
jfaw requires governmental units fo deposit public funds only in public depositories located in New Jersey
where the funds are secured in accordance with the Act.

8. RISK MANAGEMENT: The Board of Education carries various forms of insurance, including but not
limited to general liability, automobile liability and comprehensivefcollision, hazard and theft insurance on
property damage and conients and fidelity bonds.

9. OTHER INFORMATION: Independent Audit - State statutes require an annual audit by independent
certified public accountants or registered municipal accountants. The accounting firm of Suplee Clooney
& Company was selected by the Board of Education. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in
state statutes, the audit also was designed tc meet the requirements of the Single Audit Act Amendments
of 1996 and the related Uniform Guidance and state Treasury Circular 15-08 OMB. The auditor's report
on the basic financial statements and combining individuai fund statements and schedules is included in
the financial section of this report. The auditor's reports related specifically to the single audit are
included in the single audit section of this report.

Respectiully submitted,

gy o Tiins (4 o o

Gregory Tatum
Superintendent of Schools School Business Admin./Board Sec.
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SUPLEE, CLOONEY & CoMPANY

CERTIFIED PuUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

308 East Broad Street, Westfield, New Jersey 07090-2122
Telephone 908-789-9300 Fax 908-789-8535

E-mail info@scnco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education
Township of Union School District
County of Union

Union, New Jersey

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
Township of Union School District, County of Union, New Jersey as of and for the year ended June
30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generaily accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to
the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these regulatory financial statements based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, the audit requirements prescribed by the Division of Local
Government Services, Department of Community Affairs, State of New Jersey (the "Division”), and
the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance) and State of New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08 "Single Audit Policy for
Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid.” Those standards and provisions
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the regulatory financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the District's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly,
we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the regulatory financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Township of Union
School District, County of Union, New Jersey as of June 30, 2020, and the respective changes in
financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management's Discussion and Analysis and budgetary comparison information in Exhibit C-1
through C-3, the schedules related to accounting and reporting for pensions in Exhibit L-1 through
L-4 and the schedules related to the accounting and reporting for postretirement benefits other
than pensions (OPEB) in Exhibit M-1 and M-2 be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express
an opinion or provide any assurance.
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Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements
that collectively comprise the Township of Union School District's basic financial statements. The
accompanying supplementary information, data and schedules such as the combining and
individual fund financial statements and the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and
State Financial Assistance, as listed in the table of contents, as required by the Uniform Guidance,
“Audits of States, Local Governments and Nonprofit Organization,” New Jersey’s OMB Circular
NJOMB 15-08, "Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid,”
and the State of New Jersey, Department of Education, Division of Finance, are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The accompanying supplementary information, data and schedules such as the combining
and individual fund financial statements and the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and
State Financial Assistance, as listed in the table of contents, as required by the Uniform Guidance,
“Audits of States, Local Governments and Nonprofit Organization,” New Jersey's OMB Circular
NJOMB 15-08, “Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid,”
and the State of New Jersey, Department of Education, Division of Finance is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the accompanying
supplementary information, data and schedules is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation
to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The other information, such as the introductory and statistical sections, has not been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and
accordingly, we do not express on opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Prior Period Financial Statements

The financial statements of the Township of Union School District for the year ended June
30, 2019 were audited by other auditors whose report, dated November 26, 2019, expressed an
unmodified opinion on those statements.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 31, 2020 on our consideration of the Township of Union School District's internal control
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or
on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Township of Union School District's internal

control over financial reporting and compliance.
’
E;Q_é,-bt. , %h) < ‘r—,
ERTIFIER’PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS [

L o s

December 31, 2020 PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTAMT NO. 962
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TOWNSHIP OF UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
UNION, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
UNAUDITED

The Management's Discussion and Analysis of the Township of Union School District (the
“District”) offers readers of the District's financial statements a narrative overview of the financial
activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. The intent of this discussion is to look at the
District's financial performance as a whole; therefore readers should also review the transmittal
letter at the front of this report, along with the District's financial statements and notes to the
financial statements to enhance their understanding of the District’s financial performance.

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of Required Supplementary
Information specified in the Governmental Accounting Standards Board’s (GASB) Statement No.
34 ~ Basic Financial Statements-Management's Discussion and Analysis-for the State and Local
Governments issued in June 1999. Certain comparative information between the current fiscal
year (2019-2020) and the prior fiscal year (2018-2019) is required to be presented in the MD&A.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This Comprehensive Annual Financial Report ("CAFR") consists of three parts: Management's
Discussion and Analysis (this section), The Basic Financial Statements, and Required
Supplementary Information. The Basic Financial Statements include two kinds of statements that
present different views of the District, District—wide Financial Statements and Fund Financial
Statements.

« District-Wide Financial Statements provide both short-term and long-term information about
the District’s overall financial status.

e Fund Financial Statements report the District's operations in more detail than the District-
wide statements on individual parts of the District, the Governmental Funds, Proprietary
Funds and Fiduciary Funds.

+ Governmental Funds Statements tell how basic services such as regular and special
education were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for future spending.

s Proprietary Funds Statements offer short and long-term financial information about the
activities the District operates like a business, which include food services, community
education and summer enrichment programs.

¢ Fiduciary Funds Statements provide information about the financial relationships in which
the District acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of others.

The notes to financial statements are also included, which are an integral part of the financial
statements. The information in the noles provides detailed data on the District's financial
operations.

Required supplementary information further explains and supports the financial statements with a

comparison of the District's budget for the year. Exhibit A-1 reflects how the various parts of this
annual report are arranged and related to one another.

12



TOWNSHIP OF UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
UNION, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
UNAUDITED

District-Wide Financial Statements

The District-Wide Financial Statements report information about the District as a whole using
accounting methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net
assets includes all of the District's assets and liabilities. All current year’'s revenue and expenses
are accounted for in the statement of activities regardless of when cash is received or disbursed.

The District-Wide Financial Statements report the District's net position and how they have
changed. Net position, the difference between the District's assets and liabilities, is one way to
measure the District’s financial health or position. Over time, increases or decreases in the
District’s net position are an indicator of whether its financial position has improved or diminished.
The causes of this change may be a result of many factors, some financial and some not. Non-
financial factors include the District’s property tax base, current laws in New Jersey restricting
revenue growth, facility condition, required educational programs and other factors.

In the District-Wide Financial Statements, the District's activities are divided into two categories,
governmental and business-type activities.

e Governmental activities - All of the District's programs and services are reported here
including, but not limited to regular and special education instruction, support services,
operation and maintenance of plant facilities, pupil transportation and extracurricular
activities. Property taxes and state formula aid finance most of these activities,

« Business-Type activities - These services are provided on a charge for goods or services
basis to recover all the expenses of the goods or services provided. District charges fees to
help it cover the costs of certain services it provided. The food service activities are
reported as business activities.

13



TOWNSHIP OF UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
UNION, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
UNAUDITED

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the District’s funds, focusing
on major funds. Funds are accounting devices the District uses to keep track of specific sources of
funding and spending on particular programs. Some funds are required by state law and by bond
covenants. The District establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular
purposes (i.e. long-term debt) or to show that it is properly using certain restricted revenues (i.e.
entitiement grants).

The District maintains three financial funds:

e Governmental Funds: The District's activities reported in governmental funds focus on how
money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end available for
spending in the future years. These funds are reported using an accounting method called
modified accrual accounting that measures cash and all other financial assets that can
readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed
short-term view of the District's general government operations and the basic services it
provides. Governmental fund information helps you determine whether there are more or
fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance educational
programs. The relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the
district-wide Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities) and governmental funds
statements is reconciled in the financial statements.

e Proprietary Funds: Services for which the District charges a fee are generally reported in
proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way as the District-wide
financial statements. The District's enterprise funds (one type of proprietary fund) are the
same as its business-type activities but provide more detail and additional information, such
as cash flow.

« Fiduciary Funds: The District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for assets that belong to others,
such as scholarship funds and the student activities funds. The District is responsible for
ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used only for their intended purposes
and by those to whom the assets belong. The District excludes these activities from the
District-wide financial statements because it cannot use these assets to finance its
operations.
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TOWNSHIP OF UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
UNION, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
UNAUDITED

Financial Analysis of the District as a Whole
The District's combined net position has increased from the 2018-2019 fiscal year. The net

position from governmental activities increased $465,367. Net position from business-type
activities decreased $145,109. Table 1 below reflects the District's net position as a whole.

Table 1
Condensed Statement of Net Position
Tolal
Governmental Aclivifes Business-Type Acivilies Tolal School District Percentage
FY 2020 FY 2019 EY 2020 FY 2018 FY 2020 FY 2019 Change
Currentand {as reshied) {as reshled)
Oher Assets $10,726,400 $8,267,026 $585,399 $588,802 $11,311,799 $8,855,828 21.73%
Capilal Assels 90,839,707 93,513,537 818,105 812,620 91,657,812 94,326,157 {2.83%)
Tohl Assets 101,566,106 101,780,563 1,403,504 1,401,422 102,969,611 103,181,865 {0.21%)
Deferred Outfiows
Relaked b Loss From
Refunding Debt 878,810 880,223 878,810 980,223 (10.35%)
Relaked b Pensions 8,891,214 11,280,769 8,891,214 11,280,769 {21.18%)
Total Deferred Outflows 9,770,024 12,260,902 9,770,024 12,260,992 {20.32%)
Long-Term
Liabilifes 56,591,528 60,386,813 56,591,528 60,386,813 {6.28%)
ShortTerm
Liabilies 6,711,114 6,537,762 143,377 285,050 6,854,491 6,822,812 0.46%
Total Liabitfes 63,302,642 66,924 575 143,377 285,050 63,446,019 67,209,625 {5.60%)
Deferred Infows
Related b Pensions 14,287,194 13,836,056 14,287,194 13,836,056 3.26%
Net Positior:
Netinvestment
in Capital
Assels 73,459,183 74,502,287 818,105 812,620 74,277,289 75,314,807 {1.38%)
Resticled 8,446,449 5,405,186 8,446,449 5,405,186 56.27%
Unresticied (Deficif) {48,159,338) {46,626,549) 153,158 303,752 {48,006,180) (46,322,797) 3.63%
Total Net
Position $33,746,294 $33,280,924 $971,263 $1,116,372 $34,717,557 $34,397,208 0.93%
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TOWNSHIP OF UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
UNION, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

UNAUDITED
Table 2
Changes in Net Position from Operating Results
Governmental Business-Type Total Schoo!
Activiies Actviies District
FY 2020 FY 2019 FY 2020 FY 2019 FY 2020 FY 2018
Revenue:
Program Revenue:
Charges for Services $4,173,002 $1,420.670 $1,173,002 $1,429 870
Operating Grants and
Confributions $37,827,972 $48,689,313 1,428,424 1,712.479 39,256,393 50,401,792
General Revenue:
Properly Taxes 94,320,891 92,543,494 94,320,891 92,543,494
Federal and Siale Aid
notrestricted 33,682,659 26,513,994 33,682,659 26,513,994
Other 546,648 1,080,807 5,490 8,214 552,138 1,089,021
Totat Revenue 166,378,170 168,827 608 2,606,914 3,150,363 168,985,084 171,977,971
Expenses:
Instrucion 105,787,225 97,516,126 105,787,225 97,516,126
Student & Instructonal

Support Services 26,188,636 35,819,529 26,188,636 35,819,529
Adminisrative and

Business 14,240,454 13,970,469 14,210,454 13,970,469
Mainkenance &

Operafions 11,313,235 12,359,449 11,313,235 12,359,449
Transportation 1,697,208 8,059,568 7,697,206 8,059,568
Other 716,046 3,254,583 2,752,023 3,308,698 3,468,069 6,561,281

Total Expenses 165,912 803 170,976,724 2,752,023 3,309,698 168,664,826 174,286,422
Increase/{Decrease) in
Net Position $465,367 ($2,149,116} ($145,108) ($159,335) $320,258 ($2,308,451)

Both revenues and expenses decreased mainly as a result of the district recognizing a smaller on-
behalf TPAF contribution as a revenue and as an expense based upon the State’s Actuarial report.
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TOWNSHIP OF UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
UNION, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
UNAUDITED

Sources of Revenue for the Fiscal Year 2020

The District's total revenue for the 2019-2020 school year was $168,985,084 as reflected in Table
3 below. Property taxes accounted for 55.82 percent of the total revenue with the other 44.18
percent consisting of state and federal aid, charges for services, and miscellaneous sources.

Table 3
Sources of Revenue

FY 2020 FY 2019

Sources of Revenue Amount Percentage Amount Percentage
Property Taxes $94,320,891 55.82% $92. 543,494 53.88%
Operating State and Federal Aid 66,798,981 39.53% 71,348,191 41.54%
Federal and State Grants 6,140,072 3.63% 5,567,595 3.24%
Charges for Services 1,173,002 0.69% 1,429,670 0.83%
Cther 552 139 0.32% 858,027 0.49%
$168,985,084 100.00% $171,747 977 100.00%

Expenses for the Fiscal Year 2020

The total expenses for the 2019-2020 fiscal year for all programs and services were $168,664,826.
Table 4 below summarizes these program costs. The District's expenses are predominantly
related to instructing, providing services and transporting students, grades kindergarten through
twelve, which accounts for 82.81 percent of the total District costs. Administrative and business
expenses account for the costs of the Office of the Superintendent of Schools, the Business Office,
and the Principal’s Offices in all five schoo! buildings. Maintenance and operations account for the
costs of keeping the school buildings and grounds safe, clean and in good operating condition, and
includes all the utility costs related to the school facilities. Other costs include interest on long-term
debt, unallocated depreciation expense and the costs of the business-type activities of the
proprietary funds. It is important to note that depreciation expense on capital assets is included in
expenses for the year under the GASB entity-wide reporting model; expenses therefore include
$3,715,020 for depreciation. The decrease in total expenses can be explained by the change in
the pension expense based on the State’s Actuarial report.
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TOWNSHIP OF UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
UNION, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

UNAUDITED
Table 4
Expenses for Fiscal Year 2020
FY 2020 FY 2018
Expense Category Amount Percentage Amount Percentage
Instruction $105,787,225 62.72% $110,734,283 64.77%
Student & Instruction Services 26,188,636 15.53% 22,601,372 13.22%
Administrative and Business 14,210,454 B.43% 13,970,469 8.17%
Maintenance & Operations 11,313,235 6.71% 12,359,449 71.23%
Transportation 7.697,208 4.56% 8,059,568 4.71%
Other 3,468,069 2.05% 3,251,683 1.91%
$168,664,826 100.00% $170,976,724 100.00%

Governmental Activities

Table 5 presents the net cost (total cost less fees generated by the activities and
intergovernmental aid provided for specific programs) of six major District activities: instruction,
student and instructional services, administration and business, maintenance and operations,
transportation, and other. The net cost shows the financial burden placed on the District’s

taxpayers and the state by each of these functions.

Table 5
Net Cost of Governmental Activities
FY 2020 FY 2019
Expense Category Amount Percentage Amount Percentage
Instruction $79,805,581 62.31% $71,081,854 59.59%
Student & Instruction Services 18,549,748 14.48% 17,684,436 14.00%
Administrative and Business 12,012,333 9.38% 12,121,394 9.29%
Maintenance & Operations 11,313,235 8.83% 11,865,818 9.46%
Transportation 5,802,397 4.53% 6,068,993 5.62%
Other 601,536 0.47% 3,243,136 2.04%
$128,084,831 100.00% $122,065,631 100.00%
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TOWNSHIP OF UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
UNION, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
UNAUDITED

Instruction expenses include activities directly dealing with the teaching of students and the
interaction between teacher and student, including extracurricular activities.

Students and instruction related include the activities involved with assisting staff with the
content and process of teaching to students, including curriculum and staff development.

General administration, school administration, and central services include expenses associated
with administrative and financial management of the District.

Operation and maintenance of facilities involve keeping the school grounds, buildings and
equipment in an effective operating condition.

“‘Other” includes unallocated depreciation.
General Fund Budgeting Highlights

The District's budget is prepared according to New Jersey Statutes and is based on accounting for
certain transactions on a basis of modified accrual and encumbrance accounting.

Over the course of the year, the Board of Education approved revisions to the general fund budget
as needed. These budget amendments were necessary for the following reasons:

« Changes in administrative structure and needs required additional funds being transferred
into those areas.

« Realigned appropriations in accordance with the prescribed chart of accounts as needed.

Capital Assets

During the fiscal year 2019-2020, the District's depreciation expense and retired assets exceeded
capital acquisitions, therefore total capital assets net of depreciation decreased. Table & reflects
the comparative balances of capital assets net of depreciation. The detail of the changes in capital
assets is reflected in Note 3 to the financial statements.
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TOWNSHIP OF UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

UNION, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

UNAUDITED
Table 6
Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation)
Total
Governmental Activities Business-Type Aclivities Total Schoof District Percentage
FY 2020 FY 2019 FY 2020 FY 2019 FY 2020 FY 2019 Change
(as restated) {as restated)
Land $9,553,000 $9,553,000 $9,553,000 $9,553,000 0.00%
Site
Improvements 2,216,877 2,393,228 2,276,877 2393228  {4.86%)
Building and
Building
improvements 74,724,118 77,048,769 74,724,018 77048769  {3.02%)
Machinery and
Equipment 4,285812 4,518,540 $818,105 $812,620 5,403,017 5331160  (4.26%)
Total Assets $90,839,707 $93,513,537 $818,105 $812,620 $91,657,812 $94,326,157  (2.83%)

Debt and Long-term Liabilities Administration

At June 30, 2020, the District had $59,254,048 of outstanding long-term debt, consisting of bonds
payable, compensated absences, capital leases, unamortized premiums and net pension liability.
The District will continue to pay down its debt, as the obligations are due. Table 7 reflects the
comparison of outstanding debt for the past two fiscal years. More information of the District’s long-
term debt is presented in Note 4 to the financial statements,

Table 7
Outstanding Long-term Debt

Capital Leases Payable
Compensated Absences Payable
Bonds Payable

QOriginal lssue Premium

Net Pension Liahility Payable

Total School Debt

Total

EY 2020 EY 2019 Percentage Change
(as restated)
$1,025,025 $434,473 135.92%
3,305,142 3,080,850 7.28%
17,367,000 19,557,000 (11.20%)
617,308 721,776 (14.47%)
36,839,573 39,115,042 (5.56%)
$69,254,048 $62,909,141 {5.81%)
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TOWNSHIP OF UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
UNION, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
UNAUDITED
The District's Future

The Township of Union School District saw an increase in its fund balance during the 2019/2020
school year. The enroliment in the District continues to remain stable. The District is proud of its
community support and student involvement in the public schools. Major concerns continue to be
the increased reliance on local property taxes, levels of State aid, a rising health care cost and out
of district special education students and special education related services and the continued 2%
levy cap. The District's will continue to implement sound fiscal management.

Contacting the District’s Financial Management
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investors and creditors with a
general overview of the School District’s finances and to show the School District's accountability

for the money it receives. Questions regarding this report can be directed to the Board of
Education Office at the Union Township School District, 2369 Morris Avenue, NJ 07083.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements provide a financial overview of
the District's operations. These financial statements present the financial position and
operating results of all funds as of June 30, 2020.
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DISTRICT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The statement of net position and the statement of aclivities display information about the District. These statements include the
financial activities of the overall district, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made fo minimize the double counting
of inlernal activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the District.
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EXHIBIT "A-1"

TOWNSHIP OF UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2020

ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net '
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
Inventory
Restricted assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress
Qther capital assets, net
Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:

Related to debt refunding
Related to pensions
Total Deferred Qutflows of Resources

LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable
Payable to state government
interfunds payable
Unearned revenue
Accrued interest payable
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year
Due beyond one year:
Net Pension Liability
Compensated absences payable
Bonds and capital leases payable
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:

Related to pensions
Total Deferred inflows of Resources

NET POSITION:

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:

Capital projects fund

Other purposes
Unrestricted {deficit)

Total net position

GOVERNMENTAL  BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL
$5,001,593 $26.416 $5,028,009
3,118,018 487,844 3,605,861
{288,864) (288,864)
71,138 71,139
2,608,789 2,608,789
9,553,000 9,553,000
81,286,707 818,105 82,104,812
101,566,108 1,114,640 102,680,747
878,810 878,810
8,891,214 8,891,214
8,770,024 9,770,024
2,667,391 31.221 2,698,612
123,964 123,964
68,773 68,773
929,795 112,157 1,041,952
258,670 258,670
2,662,520 2,662,520
36,939,573 36,939,673
3,305,142 3,305,142
16,346,813 16,346,813
63,302,642 143,377 63,446,019
14,287,194 14,287,194
14,287,194 14,287,194
73.459,183 818,105 74,277,289
834,286 834,286
7,612,162 7,612,182
(48,159,338) 163,158 {48,008,180)
$33,746,294 $971.263 $34.717 557

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

24



usluaiels i jo Jed [Ribsiu) ue ale sjuSLUBLElS [RIJURLY i) O] sajou Buduedwoose sy |

166° 2L PES £0Z'1 16$ PeT obL'SES Bulpua uoyIsod 19N
962 /BE'PE zie'ot’t 976'082'¢E pareysas se) Busuban - uogisod 18N
852'0ZE [CLPR=10] LoE'gep vogsod jau ul sbuey)
689'555'821 067'S 961055821 sanuanes (eieuab jeoL
6EL'288 06v's% 8¥9'ars BLIOU; SNOBLR|SISHN
£69'789°€E 659°289'€E pejlIsal JoU ple SjBlS PUe [eiapad
0bTerLT oPZ'EvLZ asines Jqap - saxe) Auedolg
158'126'168 150'LIS 16S |esoush - sax) Aitadold
saxe]
[sanuaney [Rlauen)
{oct'cez'szLe) (009'05L %) {L£8'¥BO'8ZLS) £6E°057 663 200'€LL'LS 9z2'v99'88Ls
(oog'0s19) {0098'ceLS) LZr'eey 1S Z00ELL'L £C0CSLE
{00g'0518) {oos'osis) LZy'ezZyLE ZoO'SLL'LS £Z0'ZGL'E
{Lee'¥R0'82 1) (L£8°¥80'821) £16'428'1¢ £08'2L6 991
(0s9'028) {09g'0zs) 0LE'vLL 0.1'589
(948'08) (a.8'08) (rpLPEe'es) 020'1L'E
{r0s'206'05) $08'206°05
(z68'208's) {26£'208's) B08'PER'L GLo'PEY'L L65'202'e
{sez'ele'sl) {ssz'sig'Ll) Z'Pee'e 5£0'656'8
{rra‘sLl) {pre‘aLs) 2125's5PT Lig'siy
(822'v08')) {622'v05't) 618'048 LeZ'veL'L
(116°105'9) (015" L0g'e) LZL'86L'Z SEE'vEL'E 169'596'F
(oog'esz'e) (oog'e82'e) 865'v29 L0Z'290's
{eyi'svs'al) (apL'e¥s'st) 608'888°L 8512016 8ip° 18021
{ees'oEE's) (seL'02e's) $69'L5E"L ZER'0GLT 219128
(Lov'oeL'se) (Lo1'062'€2) 108'sEE's £SE'GEY L $52'829'22
(5v2'vBO'058) {5pL'v69'058) 2P 96T '81S 0£5'6.46°928 L59°130'208
WIOL SELIAILSY SILIANILDOY ENOTIAETEINGD ONVY SHIEA NOILYIOTIY SISNIXT
IdAL-SSINISNG TYLNIWNETAOD SLNVHD ONILYHZH0 HOd SEOHVYHD SASNIXT
NOILISOd L3N NI S29ONYHD aNY 3NNIAZY (3SNIdX3) 13N SIANNIASY WYHOOEd LOTHIANI
G202 08 ANt

W& LIGIE

juawireaob Aepwud B0

seyaloe sdh-ssansng 2101
Ba|Aes poogd
sanoe adii-ssauIshe

oe [ejaILuIancs felo ]
198p wia) Buo] uo 1salau|
uohewaldag pajedo|eun
siyauaq pajeacyeur]
soniAlas uonepodsUeL WSpNIS
soUBUSUIBW PUE SUONRISD JUBld
ABopotyss) Uoeulioiul UoneRsiunUpyY
SODINIDS [BNUSD
SAOIAGS BABISILILLDE [O0YIS
$BNISS SAJBISIHWPE |RISUDD
SOOIISS PALE| LORONIISUI PUB JUapnS

‘saoiaes yoddng
JBUO
ucheonps feloads
Jeinfey

JUoaNIsUy

SRREMIOY [RIUBSWILIBADS

AV d/SNOLLONNZ

[Te
o~



MAJOR FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Individual fund financial statements and schedules present more detailed information for the individual
fund in a format that segregates information by fund type.
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ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS:

Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand with fiscal agents
Capital reserve account
Maintenance reserve account
Emergency reserve account
Accounts receivable:

Federal

State

Other

Interfund

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Intergovernmental payable:
State
Interfunds payable
Unearned revenue

Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Restricted for:
Capital reserve account
Maintenance reserve account
Emergency reserve account
Excess surplus designated for
subsequent years expenditures
Excess surplus - current year
Capital projects fund
Assigned for:
Year-end encumbrances
Committed for:
Year-end encumbrances
Unassigned:
General fund
Special revenue fund (deficit)

Total fund balances (deficit)

Total liabilities and fund balances

EXHIBIT "B-1"

SHEET #1
TOWNSHIF OF UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2020
SPECIAL CAPITAL DEBT TOTAL
GENERAL REVENUE PROJECTS SERVIGE GOVERNMENTAL

FUND FUND FUND FUND FUNDS
$4,734,731 $114,260 $152,602 $5,001,593
750,105 750,105
681,684 681,684
450,000 450,000
725,000 725,000
563,504 563,504
2,544,903 7.728 2,552,631
1,882 1,882
229,315 229,315
9,888,305 914,807 152,602 10,955,715
344,202 177,199 521,401
123,964 123,964
298,088 298,088
750,105 929,691 1,679,795
1,392,394 1,230,854 2,623,248
681,684 681,684
450,000 450,000
725,000 725,000
2,227,251 2,227,251
1,602,313 1,692,313
94,604 94,604
2,517,598 2,517,508
57,998 57,998
202,065 202,065
(316,047) (316,047)
8,495,911 (316,047) 152,602 8,332,466
$9,888,305 $914,807 $152,602 0- $10,955,715

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWNSHIP OF UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2020

Total Fund Balances {Brought Forward)

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement
of Net Position {A-1) are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.
Cost of Assets
Accumulated Depreciation

Long term liabilities, inciuding bonds payable, and other related
amounts that are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore are not reported as liabilities in the funds.

Net pension liability

Compensated absences payable

Capital leases payable

Less: unexpended capital lease proceeds

Serial bonds payable (517,367,000}
Premium on refunding debt, net (617,308}
Unamortized Deferred Amount on Refunding Bonds, net §78,810

Deferred Qutflows and Inflows of resources are applicable
to future periods and therefore are not reported in the funds.
Pensions:
Deferred Qutflows
Pension related

Deferred Inflows:
Pension related

Certain liabilities are not due and payable in the current period

and therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.
Accounts payable - pension related
Accrued interest payable

Net Position of Governmental Activities

EXHIBIT "B-1"

SHEET #2
$8,332,466
$135,240,587
{44,400,880)
90,839,707
(36,939,573)
(3,305,142}
(1,025,025)
750,000
(17,105,498}
(57.625,238)
8,891,214
(14,287,194)
(2,145,990)
(258,670)
(2,404,660)
$33,746,284

The accompanying Notes io the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

REVENUES:

Local sources:
Local tax levy
Tuitien from other LEA’s within the state
Miscellaneous

Total revenues-local sourges

State sources
Federal sources

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current expense:
Instruction:
Regular
Special education
Other instruction
Support services:
Tuition
Student and instruction related services
General administrative services
School administrative services
Central services
Administration Information Technology
Plant operations and maintenance
Student transportation services
Employee benefits
Capital outiay
Capital cutiay - debt assessment
Debt service:
Pringipa
Interest

Total expenditures

Excess {deficiency) of revenues
over {under} expenditures

Other financing sources {uses)
Qperating transfers in
Operating transfers out
Capital leases (non-budgeted}

Total financing sources (uses).

Net change in fund balances

Fund batances, July 1, 2015

Fund balances, June 30, 2020

The accompanying notes o the financial statements are an integral part of {his statement

TOWNSHIP OF UNION SCHOO! DISTRICT

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

EXHIBIT "B-2"

SPECIAL CAPITAL DEBT TOTAL
GENERAL REVENUE PROJECTS SERVICE GOVERNMENTAL
FUND FUND FUND FUND FUNDS

$91,571,651 $2,749,240 $94.320.891
52,264 52,264
456.446 $37,939 494,384
92,080,361 37,939 2,749,240 94 867,539
56,110,503 3,051,983 114,510 59,276,996
186,220 3,088,089 3,274,309
148,377,084 6,178,010 2.863.750 157 418.844
38,512,525 2,572,523 41,085,048
9,947,271 1,715,451 11,862,722
3,182,271 3,182,271
12,057,596 12,057,596
14,665,414 1,944,981 16,610,395
2,662,201 2,662,201
4,867,258 4,867,258
1,134,261 1.134.261
726,836 726,836
9,046,000 9,046,000
6,318,880 6.318.880
42,500,948 42,500,948
686,137 31,787 $386.092 1,104,016
101,460 101,460
2,190,000 2,190,000

673,750 673.750

146,409,055 §,264,742 386.092 2,863,750 155,823,639
1,968,029 (86,732 (386,092} 1,495,205
322,309 231,000 553,309
(231,000) (322,300} (553,399)
297,324 207,324
388,633 (91,309) 297.324
2,356,663 (86.732) (477,401 1,792,529
6,139,248 (229,315} 630.004 6,539,037
$6,485,911 ($316,647) $152.602 $8,332,466
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TOWNSHIP N SC L DISTRIC
RECONCILIATION OF Ti MENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITU
ANDC ESINF B CE. VERN Al FUND
IO TATEMEN ACTIVIT)
FORT ISCAL YEAR ED JUN 020

Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds (from B-2}

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activities (A-2) are different because:

Capital outlays are reportad in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the
siatement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful
kves as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which depreciation exceeded
capital cutlays in the period.

Depreciation expense
Capital cutlays
Capital outlays not capitalized

Proceeds from debt issues are a financing source in the governmental funds. They are not revenue
in the statement of activities; issuing debt increases fong-term liabifities in the statement of net assets.

Proceeds from capital leases
Refunding bonds issuance premium

Repayment of long-term debt is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces
long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets and is not reported in the statement of activities.

Payment of bond principal
Payment of capital leases payable
Amortization of deferred amounts on refunding bonds

In the statement of activities, interest on long-term debt is accrued, regardiess of when due.
In governmental funds, interest is reporied when due, The accrued interest is an addition in the
reconcifialion.

District pension contributions are reporied as expenditures in the governmental funds when made.
However, they are reporied as deferred outflows of resources in the Statement of Net Position because
the reported net pension liability is measured a year before the District's report date. Pension expense,
which is the change in the net pension liabilily adjusted for changes in deferred oulflows and inflows of
resources related to pensions, is reported in the Statement of Activities.

District pension confributions
Less: Pension expense

In the statement of activities, certain expenses, £.g., compensaled absences (vacations) are
measured by the amounts earned during the year. In governmental funds, however, expenditures
for these itemns are reported in the amount of financial resources used (paid). When the earned
amount exceeds the paid amount, the difference is a reduction in the recenciliation (-}; when the
paid amount exceeds the earned amount the difference is an addition to the reconciliation (+).

Change in nel position of governmental activities

{$3,715.020)
1,205,476

(164,286)

(297,324)
104,468

2,190,000
456,772

(101,413}

1,994,147
_ (en214)

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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EXHIBIT "B-3"

§1,792,520

(2,673,831)

(192,856)

2,545,359

35,525

{817,067)

(224,292

$465,367



OTHER FUNDS

31




EXHIBIT "B-4"

TOWNSHIP OF UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS - ENTERPRISE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2020

BUSINESS TYPE
ACTIVITIES -
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOOD
SERVICE
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash & cash equivalents $ 26,416
Accounts receivable;
State 475
Federal 48,667
Other 438,702
Allowance for doubtful accounts {(288,864)
Inventories 71,139
Total current assels $ 286,535
Noncurrent assets:
Furniture, machinery & equipment $ 2,348,048
l.ess accumulated depreciation (1,525,943)
Total noncusrent assets $ 818,105
Total assets $ 1,114,640
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 31,221
Unearned revenue 112,157
Total current liabilities 3 143,377
Total liabilities $ 143,377
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 818,105
Unrestricted 153,158
Total net position $ 971,263

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWNSHIP OF UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

EXHIBIT "B-5"

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET PCSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services:
Daily sales - reimbursable programs
Daily sales - non-reimbursable programs
Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Cost of sales - reimbursable programs
Cost of sales - non-reimbursable programs
Salaries
Empioyee benefits
Other purchased services
Supplies and materials
Cleaning, repair and maintenance services
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):

State sources
State school lunch program
Federal sources
National school breakfast program
National school lunch program
National school lunch program - HHFKA
National feod distribution commodities
Interest

Total nonoperating revenues
Change in Net Position
Total net position - beginning

Total net position - ending

BUSINESS TYPE
ACTIVITIES -
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

FOOD SERVICE
SCHOOL NUTRITION

804,567
337,929
30,505

1,173,002

1,124,066
144,172
724,464
255,637
187,224

97,175
138,872
80,413

2,752,023

(1,579,021)

27,562

209,872
950,146
36,764
204,077
5,490

1,433,812

(145,109)

1,116,372

971,263

The accompanying Notes o the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



TOWNSHIP OF UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS - ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers
Payments to employees
Payments to employee benefits
Payment to suppliers

Net cash provided (used for) by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
State Sources
Federal Sources
Net cash provided by (used for) noncapital
financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Purchase of capital assets

Net cash used for capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest and dividends

Net cash used for capital and related financing activities
Net increase (decrease} in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents- July 1

Cash and cash equivalents- June 30

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income {loss)
to cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
Change in assets and liabilities:
{Increase) Decrease in inventory
{Increase) Decrease in other accounts receivable
Iincrease (Decrease) in accounts payable
Increase {Decrease) in deferred revenue

Net cash provided (used} by operating activities

EXHIBIT "B-6"

BUSINESS TYPE
ACTIVITIES -
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

FOOD
SERVICE

1,145,370
(724 ,464)
(255,637)

(1,996,612)

(1,831,342)

30,447
1,458,981

1,490,428

{85,899)

(85,899)

5,480

5,490

{421,323}

447,739

26,416

(1.579,021)

80,413

(41,223)
(149,838)
(242,701)

101,028

(1,831,342)

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Due from other funds

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Net Salary payable
Payroll deductions and withholdings
Due to student groups
Due to other funds

Total liabilities
NET POSITION
Reserve for state unempioyment

Reserve for scholarship awards

Tatai net position

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

TOWNSHIP OF UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENTS CF FIDUCIARY NET POSITICN

JUNE 30, 20620

EXHIBIT "B-7"

STATE
AGENCY FUNDS UNEMPLOYMENT
STUDENT PAYROLL SCHOLARSHIP COMPENSATION
ACTIVITY AGENCY FUNDS TRUST
$ 413,138 § 4805993 § 256,095 1,174,120
215,962
3 413,138 4805993 $ 256,095 1,390,082
§ $ 3685323 §
904,709
413,138
215,962
3 413,138 $ 4,805,993 %
$ $ $ 1,390,082
256,085
$ -0- $ -0- $ 256,095 1,360,082
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EXHIBIT "B-8"

TOWNSHIP OF UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

STATE
UNEMPLOYMENT
SCHOLARSHIP COMPENSATION

FUNDS TRUST

ADDITIONS:
Contributions:
Employee Contributions $ $ 118,019
Other 67,000

Total contributions $ 67000 % 118,019

Investment earnings:

interest 3 3898 § 16,142
$ $

Net investment earnings 3,896 16,142
Total additions $ 70,896 $ 134,161
DEDUCTIONS:
Unemployment claims 3 $ 173,568
Miscellaneous 12,449
Awards 37,790
Total deductions $ 37790 % 186,017
Change in net position $ 33,106 % {51,857)
Net assets - July 1 222,989 1,441,939
Net assets - June 30 $ 256,095 3 1,390,082

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

36



NOTE 1:

Township of Union School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Township of Union School District have been
prepared in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant
of the Board's accounting policies are described below.

Reporting Entity

The Township of Union School District is a Type I District located in Union
County, New Jersey. The District is an instrumentality of the State of New
Jersey, established to function as an educational institution. The District is
governed by a nine member board elected to three-year terms and is responsible
for the fiscal control of the District. A superintendent is appointed by the Board
and is responsible for the administrative control of the District.

The primary criterion for including activities within the District's reporting entity
are set forth in Statement No. 39 of the Governmentai Accounting Standards
Board entitied “Defermining Whether Certain Organizations are Component
Units” (GASB 39) as codified in Section 2100 of the GASB Codification of
Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards.

Organizations that are legally separate, tax-exempt entities and meet alf of the
following criteria should be discretely presented as component units. These
criteria are:

1. The economic resources received or held by the separate organization are
entirely or almost entirely for the direct benefit of the primary government.

2. The primary government, or its component unit, is entitled to, or has the ability
to otherwise access, a majority of the economic resources of the organization.

3. The economic resources received or held by an individual organization that the
specific primary government, or its component units, is entitie to, or has the
ability to otherwise access, are significant to that primary government.

The combined financial statements include all funds of the District over which
the Board exercises operating control. The operations of the District include
elementary schools through high school Grades K thru 12, located in the
Township of Union. There were no additional entities required to be included in
the reporting entity under the criteria as described above, in the current fiscal
year. Furthermore, the District is not includable in any other reporting entity on
the basis of such criteria.
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NOTE 1:

Township of Union School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of Presentation

The District’'s basic financial statements consist of District-wide statements,
including a Statement of Net Position and a Statement of Activities, and fund
financial statements which provide a more detailed level of financial information.

District-wide Statements. The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities display information about the District as a whole. These statements
include the financial activities of the overall District, except for fiduciary activities.
Eliminations have been made to minimize the double-counting of internal
activities. These statements distinguish generally between the governmental and
business-type activity of the District. Governmental activities generally are
financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange
transactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees
charged to external parties.

The Statement of Net Position presents the financial condition of the
governmental and business-type activity of the District at fiscal year end. The
Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and
program revenues for the business-type activity of the District and for each
function of the District's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that
are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly
identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include (a) fees and
charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and
(b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirement of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as
program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as generally revenues. The
comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to
which each governmental function or business segment is self-financing or draws
from the general revenues of the District.

Fund Financial Statements. During the fiscal year, the District segregates
transactions related to certain District functions or activities in separate funds in
order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance. The
fund financial statements provide information about the District’s funds, including
its fiduciary funds. Separate statements for each fund category - governmentai,
proprietary, and fiduciary - are presented. The New Jersey Department of
Education (NJDOE) has elected to require New Jersey districts to treat each
governmental fund as a major fund in accordance with the option noted in GASB
No. 34, paragraph 76. The NJDOE believes that the presentation of all funds as
major is important for public interest and to promote consistency among district
financial reporting models.
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NOTE 1:

Township of Union School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Governmental Fund Types

General Fund - The general fund is the general operating fund of the District. it
is used to account for all financial resources except those required to be
accounted for in another fund. Included are certain expenditures for vehicles and
movable instructional or non-instructional equipment which are classified in the
Capital Outlay sub-fund.

As required by the New Jersey State Department of Education, the District
includes budgeted capital outlay in this fund. Generally accepted accounting
principles as they pertain to governmental entities state that General Fund
resources may be used to directly finance capital outlays for long-lived
improvements as long as the resources in such cases are derived exclusively
from unrestricted revenues. Resources for budgeted capital outlay purposes are
normally derived from State of New Jersey Aid, district taxes and appropriated
fund balance. Expenditures are those that result in the acquisition of or additions
to fixed assets for land, existing buildings, improvements of grounds, construction
of buildings, additions to or remodeling of buildings and the purchase of built-in
equipment. These resources can be transferred from and to Current Expense by
board resolution.

Special Revenue Fund - The Special Revenue Fund is used to account for and
report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are restricted or committed
to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt service or capital projects.
Thus, the Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific
revenue from State and Federal Governments (other than major capital projects,
debt service or the enterprise funds) and local appropriations that are legally
restricted or committed to expenditures for specified purposes.

Capital Projects Fund - The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for and
report financial resources that are restricted, committed or assigned to
expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of capital
facilities and other capital assets (other than those financed by proprietary
funds). The financial resources are derived from temporary notes or serial bonds
that are specifically authorized by the voters as a separate question on the ballot
either during the annual election or at a special election, funds appropriated from
the General Fund, and from aid provided by the State to offset the cost of
approved capital projects.

Debt Service Fund - Debt service funds are used to account for and report
financial resources that are restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditure for
principal and interest.
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NOTE 1:

Township of Union School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Proprietary Fund Types

Enterprise Fund - The enterprise fund accounts for all revenues and expenses
pertaining to cafeteria operations. The food service fund is utilized to account for
operations that are financed and operated in 2 manner similar to private business
enterprises. The stated intent is that the cost (ie. expenses including
depreciation and indirect costs) of providing goods or services to the students on
a continuing basis are financed or recovered primarily through user charges.

Fiduciary Fund Types

Agency Funds - The agency funds are used to account for assets held by the
district on behalf of others and are custodial in pature. The agency funds
included in this category are as follows:

Unemployment Compensation Insurance Trust Fund - A trust fund used to
account for assets to finance the costs of unemployment benefits. Since the
Board has adopted the direct reimbursement method, the District is under
obligation to appropriate sufficient funds out of its general fund and hold them in
trust for this purpose.

Payroll and Student Activities Funds (Agency) - These are agency funds
used to account for the assets that the District holds on behalf of others as their
agent. Agency funds are custodial in nature and do not involve measurement of
results of operations.

Private_Purpose Trust Funds — These are trust funds used to account for
assets donated by individuals that will provide for the payment of awards and
scholarships to district students.
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NOTE 1:

Township of Union School District
Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of Accounting - Measurement Focus

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial
records and reported on the financial statements.

District-wide, Proprietary, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements: The District-
wide financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.
Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting. Differences in
the accrual and modified accrual basis of accounting arise in the recognition of
revenue, the recording of deferred revenue, and in the presentation of expenses
versus expenditures. Ad Valorem (Property) Taxes are susceptible to accrual as
under New Jersey State Statute a municipality is required to remit to its school
district the entire balance of taxes in the amount voted upon or certified, prior {o
the end of the school year. The District records the entire approved tax levy as
revenue (accrued) at the start of the fiscal year, since the revenue is both
measurable and available. The District is entitied to receive monies under the
established payment schedule and the unpaid amount is considered to be an
“accounts receivable”. Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations are
recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibilty requirements have been
satisfied.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements: Governmental funds are reported
using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when
measurable and available. "Measurable” means the amount of the transactions
can be determined and “available” means collectible within the current period or
soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period.
Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for
principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and
compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they
have matured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in
governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under
capital leases are reported as cther financing sources.

All governmental and business type activities and enterprise funds of the District
follow FASB Statements and Interpretations issued on or before November 30,
1989, Accounting Research Bulletins, unless those pronouncements conflict with
GASB pronouncements.
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NOTE 1:

Township of Union School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Budgets/Budgetary Control

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the
general, special revenue, and debt service funds. The budgets are submitted to
the county office for approval. In accordance with P.L. 2011, ¢. 202, the District
elected to move the April school Board election to the date of the November
general election thereby eliminating the vote on the annual base budget.
Budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting. The legal
level of budgetary control is established at line item accounts within each fund.
Line item accounts are defined as the lowest (most specific) level of detail as
established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts referenced in N.JA.C.
BA23. All budget amendments and transfers must be approved by School Board
resolution. The over-expenditures related to on-behalf payments in the general
fund are due to the inclusion of the non-budgeted on-behalf paymenis made by
the State of New Jersey as District expenditures. These amounts are offset by
related revenues and as such do not represent budgetary over-expenditures.

All budget amounts presented in the accompanying supplementary information
reflect the original budget and the final budget (which have been adjusted for
legally authorized revisions of the annual budgets during the year).

Appropriations, except remaining project appropriations, encumbrances, and
unexpended grant appropriations, lapse at the end of each fiscal year. The
capital projects fund presents the remaining project appropriations compared to
current year expenditures. Formal budgetary integration into the accounting
system is employed as a management control device during the year. For
governmental funds there are no substantial differences between the budgetary
basis of accounting and generally accepted accounting principles with the
exception of the legally mandated recognition of one or more state aid payments
for budgetary purposes only and the special revenue fund as noted below.
Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of formal budgetary
integration in the governmental fund types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse
at fiscal year end.

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant
accounting budgetary basis. The grant accounting budgetary basis differs from
GAAP in that the grant accounting budgetary basis recognizes encumbrances as
expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis
does not. Sufficient supplemental records are maintained to allow for the
presentation of GAAP basis financial records.
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NOTE 1:

Township of Union School District
Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Encumbrance Accounting

Under encumbrance accounting, purchase orders, contracts and other
commitments for the expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve a portion
of the applicable appropriation. Open encumbrances in governmental funds
other than the special revenue fund are reported as assignments of fund
balances at fiscal year end as they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities but
rather commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods and services.

Open encumbrances in the special revenue fund for which the District has
received advances are reflected in the balance sheet as unearned revenues at
fiscal year end.

The encumbered appropriation authority carries over into the next fiscal year. An
entry will be made at the beginning of the next fiscal year to increase the
appropriation reflected in the certified budget by the outstanding encumbrance
amount as of the current fiscal year end.

interfunds
Interfund receivables and payables arise from transactions between particular
funds and are considered short term in duration. The interfund transactions are

recorded by all funds affected in the period in which the transactions are
executed and are part of the district's available spendable resources.

Inventories and Prepaid Expenses

inventories of materials and supplies held for consumption in the governmental
funds are recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase and year end
balances are not reported in the financial statements.

Inventories of food and/or supplies in the food service fund are recorded at cost
on a first-in, first-out basis or, in the case of Food Distribution Commodities, at
stated value which approximates market.

Prepaid expenses which benefit future periods, other than those recorded in the
enterprise fund, are recorded as an expenditure in the year of purchase.
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NOTE 1:

Township of Union School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Capital Assets

The District has an established formal system of accounting for its capital assets.
Capital Assets used for governmental purposes, which include land, buildings
and improvements and furniture and equipment, are only reported in the district-
wide financial statements. The District generally defines capital assets as assets
with an initial cost of $2,000.00 or more and an estimated useful life in excess of
one year. Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost.
Donated capital assets are valued at their acquisition value on the date received.
The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the
asset or materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.

Capital assets are depreciated in the district-wide statements using the straight-
line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Estimated

Asset Class Useful Lives
School Buildings 50
Building Improvements 20
Electrical/Piumbing 30
Vehicles 8
Office and Computer Equipment 5-10
Instructional Equipment 10
Ground Equipment 15

Compensated Absences

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g., unused sick days) as
directed by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 16 (GASB
16), “Accounting for Compensated Absences.” A liability for compensated
absences attributable to services already rendered and not contingent on a
specific event that is outside the control of the employer and employee is
accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits.
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NOTE 1:

Township of Union School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Compensated Absences (Continued)

District employees are granted varying amounts of sick days in accordance with
the District's employment confract and personnel policy. Upon retirement,
employees are paid for accrued vacation. The District's policy permits
employees to accumulate unused sick leave and carry forward the full amount of
subsequent years. Upon retirement, empioyees shail be paid by the District for
the unused sick leave in accordance with the District’'s agreements with the
various employee unions and contracts.

The liability for compensated absences was accrued using the termination
payment method, whereby the liability is calculated based on the amount of sick
days that are expected to become eligible for payment upon retirement. The
District estimates its accrued compensated absences liability based on the
accumulated sick days at the balance sheet date by those employees who are
currently eligible to receive retirement payments.

For the District-wide Statements, the current portion is the amount estimated to
be used in the following year. For the governmental funds in the fund financial
statements, a liability is reported only for to the extent of the amount actually due
at year end as a result of employee resignations/retirements. Compensated
absences are a reconciling item between the fund level and district-wide
presentations.

Fund Equity

Fund balance restrictions are used to indicate that portion of the fund balance
that is not available for expenditures or is legally segregated for a specific future
use. Designations of portions of the fund balances are established to indicate
tentative plans for financial utilization in a future period. The unreserved fund
balances represent the amount availabie for future budgetary operations.

Unrestricted retained earnings represent the remains of the District's equity in the
cumulative earnings of the food service fund.

Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenue in the special revenue and proprietary funds represents funds
which have been received but not yet earned. A corresponding accounts
receivable has also been established for any open encumbrances at year end
which is an allowable practice under generally accepted accounting principles.
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NOTE 1:

Township of Union School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations

All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations are reported on the
district-wide financial statements. In general, governmental fund payables and
accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely manner and in full from
current financial resources are reported as obligations of the funds. However,
contractually required pension contributions and compensated absences that are
paid from governmental funds are reported as liabilities on the fund financial
statements only to the extent that they are due for payment during the current
year. Long term debt is recognized as a liability on the fund financial statements
when due.

Net Position

GASB 63 provides guidance for reporting net position in the statement of
financial position and related disclosures. Net Position represents the difference
between assets and liabilities. Net investment in capital assets consists of
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding
balance of any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction, or improvement
of those assets. Net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations
imposed on their use either through the enabling legislation adopted by the
District or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or
regulations of other governments. The District's policy is to first apply restricted
resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted
and unrestricted net positions are available.

Fund Balance — Governmental Funds

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report the following
classifications of fund balance:

Nonspendable — includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either
not spendable in form or are legally or contractually required to be maintained
intact.

Restricted — includes amounts restricted by external sources (creditors, laws of
other governments, etc.) or by constitutional provision or enabling legislation. The
District reports the Capital Reserve, Emergency Reserve, Maintenance Reserve
and Excess Surplus as Restricted Fund Balance.

Committed — includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes.
Committed fund balance is reported pursuant to resolutions passed by the Board
of Education, the Districts highest level of decision making authority.
Commitments may be modified or rescinded only through resolutions approved
by the Board of Education. The District reports amounts Designated for Capital
Project Fund encumbrances as Committed Fund Balance.
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NOTE 1:

Township of Union School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fund Balance — Governmental Funds (Continued)

Assigned — includes amounts that the District intends to use for a specific
purpese, but do not meet the definition of restricted or committed fund balance.
Under the District’'s policy, amounts may be assighed by the Business
Administrator. The District reports Year End Encumbrances as Assigned Fund
Balance.

Unassigned - is the residual classification for the general fund. This classification
represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has
not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the
general fund. The general fund should be the only fund that reports a positive
unassigned fund balance amount. In other governmental funds, if expenditures
incurred for specific purposes exceeded the amounts restricted, committed, or
assigned to those purposes, it may be necessary to report a negative unassigned
fund balance.

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and
unrestricted fund balance is available, the District considers restricted funds to
have been spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for which committed,
assigned, or unassigned fund balance are available, the District considers
amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds,
and finally unassigned funds, as needed.

Revenues Exchange and Non-Exchange Transactions

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and
receives essentially equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the
exchange takes place. On the modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the
fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become available.
Available means the resources will be collected within the current fiscal year or
are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities
of the current fiscal year. For the District, “available” means within sixty days of
the fiscal year end.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenues Exchange and Non-Exchange Transactions (Continued)

Non-exchange transactions, in which the District receives value without directly
giving equal value in return, include property taxes, grants, entitlements, and
donations. On the accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in
the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from property taxes is
recognized in the period in which the revenue is earned. Revenue from grants,
entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility
requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing
requirements, which specify the year when the resources are required to be used
or the fiscal year when use is first permitted; matching requirements, in which the
District must provide local resources to be used for a specific purpose; and
expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided to the District on
a reimbursement basis. On the modified accrual basis, revenue from non-
exchange transactions must also be available before it can be recognized.

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered
hoth measurable and available at fiscal yearend: property taxes available as an
advance, interest, and tuition.

Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the
primary activity of the enterprise fund. For the District, these revenues are sales
in the Enterprise Funds. Operating expenses are necessary costs incurred to
provide the service that is the primary activity of the enterprise fund.

Allocation of indirect Expenses

The District reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of Activities.
Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a function. Indirect
expenses are allocated to functions but are reported separately in the Statement
of Activities. Employee benefits, including the employer's share of social
security, workers compensation, and medical and dental benefits, were allocated
based on salaries of the program. Depreciation expense, where practicable, is
specifically identified by function and is included in the indirect expense column
of the Statement of Activities. Depreciation expense that could not be attributed
to a specific function is considered an indirect expense and is reported
separately on the Statement of Activities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Extraordinary and Special ltems

Extraordinary items are transactions or events that are unusual in nature and
infrequent of occurrence. Special items are transactions or events that are within
control of management and are either unusual in nature or infrequent in
occurrence. Neither of these types of transactions occurred during the fiscal
year.

Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues and
expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions

In the district-wide financial statements for purposes of measuring the net
pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the District's proportionate share of the New Jersey Public Employees
Retirement System (“PERS") and the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund
(“TPAF") and the additions to/deductions from these retirement systems’
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they were
reported by PERS and TPAF. For this purpose, benefit payments (including
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

In the governmental fund financial statements the year end pension liability is not
required to be reflected. Pension related revenues and expenditures are reflected
based on amounts that are normally expected to be liquidated with available
financial resources for required pension contributions. Expenditures for PERS
are recognized based upon billings made by the State of New Jersey due April
1%t of each fiscal year. TPAF contributions are paid on the District's behalf by the
State of New Jersey. The governmental fund financial statements refiect both a
revenue and expense for this pension contribution.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of
net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. Currently, the District has
two items that qualify for reporting in this category, deferred amounts related to
refunding bonds and to pensions.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of
net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. Currently, the District has one item
that qualifies for reporting in this category, deferred amounts related to pensions.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

The Board considers petty cash, change funds, cash in banks and short term
investments with original maturities of three months or less as cash and cash
equivalents. Investments are stated at cost, which approximates market.

Deposits

New Jersey statutes permit the deposit of public funds in public depositories
which are located in New Jersey and which meet the requirements of the
Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA). GUDPA requires a bank
that accepts public funds to be a public depository. A public depository is defined
as a state bank, a national bank, or a savings bank, which is located in the State
of New Jersey, the deposits of which are insured by the Federai Deposit
Insurance Corporation. The statutes also require public depositories to maintain
collateral for deposits of public funds that exceed certain insurance fimits. All
collateral must be deposited with the Federal Reserve Bank or a Banking
Institution that is a member of the Federal Reserve System, and has capital
funds of not less than $25,000,000.00. Under (GUDPA), if a public depository
fails, the collateral it has pledged, plus the collateral of ail other public
depositories, is available to pay the full amount of the deposits to the
governmental unit.

The Township of Union School District had the following cash and cash
equivalents at June 30, 2020:
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NOTE 2: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
Deposits (Continued)
Bank Reconciling ltems: Reconciled

Fund Type: Balance Additions Reductions Balance
Governmental $9,739,654 $2,131,271 $7.608,382
Proprietary 106,250 79,834 26,416
Fiduciary 6,733,358 $6,641 90,653 6,649,347
$16,579,261 36,641 $2,301,758 $14,284 145

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits — Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the
event of a bank failure, the deposits may not be returned. The District does not
have a specific deposit policy for custodial credit risk other than those policies
that adhere to the requirements of statute. As of June 30, 2020, based upon the
coverage provided by FDIC and NJGUDPA, no amount of the bank balance was
exposed to custodial credit risk. Of the cash on balance in the bank, $251,043
was covered by Federal Depository Insurance and $15,578,113 was covered
under the provisions of NJGUDPA. $750,105 was held in escrow as part of a
lease-purchase agreement for Chromebooks by the District.

Investments

The purchase of investments by the Board is strictly limited by the express
authority of the N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37 Education, Administration of School Districts.
Permitted investments include any of the following type of securities:

1. Bonds or other obligations of the United States of America or obligations
guaranteed by the United States of America;

2. Government money market mutual funds which are purchased from an
investment company or investment trust which is registered with the
Securities and Exchange Commission under the “Investment Company
Act of 1940,” 15 U.S.C. 80a-1 et seq., and operated in accordance with
17 C.F.R. § 270.2a-7 and which portfolio is limited to U.S. Government
securities that meet the definition of an eligible security pursuant to 17
C.F.R. § 270.2a-7 and repurchase agreements that are collateralized by
such U.S. Government securities in which direct investment may be made
pursuant to paragraphs (1) and (3) of N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37. These funds
are also required to be rated by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization.

3. Any obligation that a federal agency or a federal instrumentality has
issued in accordance with an act of Congress, which security has a
maturity date not greater than 397 days from the date of purchase,
provided that such obligation bears a fixed rate of interest not dependent
on any index or other external factor;
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED})

Investments {Continued)

Bonds or other obligations of the Local Unit or bonds or other obligations
of school districts of which the Local Unit is a part or within which the
school district is located.

Bonds or other obligations, having a maturity date not more than 387
days from date of purchase, approved by the Division of Investment of the
Department of Treasury for investment by School Districts;

Local government investment pools that are fully invested in U.S.
Government securities that meet the definition of eligible security
pursuant to 17 C.F.R. § 270a-7 and repurchase agreements that are
coliateralized by such U.S. Government securities in which direct
investment may be made pursuant to paragraphs (1) and (3) of N.J.S.A.
18A:20-37. This type of investment is also required to be rated in the
highest category by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization.

Deposits with the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund
established pursuant to section 1 of P.L. 1977, ¢.281 (C. 52:18A-90.4),; or

Agreements for the repurchase of fully collateralized securities if:

a. the underlying securities are permitted investments pursuant to
paragraphs (1) and (3) of this subsection;

b. the custody of collateral is transferred to a third party,

c. the maturity of the agreement is not more than 30 days;

d. the underlying securities are purchased through a public
depository as defined in section 1 of P.L. 1970, ¢.236 (C. 17:19-
41}, and

e. a master repurchase agreement providing for the custody and
security of collateral is executed.

At June 30, 2020, the District had no outstanding investments.

Based upon the limitation set forth by New Jersey Statutes 18A:20-37
and its existing investment practices, the District is generally not exposed
to credit risks, custodial credit risks, concentration of credit risks and
interest rate risks for its investments, nor is it exposed to foreign currency
risks for its deposits and investments.
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NOTE 3: CHANGE IN CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2020 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Retirements Balance
Gowernmental activities:
Capital assets that are not depreciated:
Land $ 9,553,000 $ $ $ 9,553,000
Total capital assets that are not
depreciated $ 9,553,000 § $ $ 9,553,000
Capital assets being depreciated:
Site improvements $ 4,083,456 $ 65791 $ $ 4,149,247
Buiiding and building improvements 104,516,660 349,792 104,866,452
Machinery and equipment 15,821,733 351,108 16,212,842
Total capital assets being depreciated $ 124,421,849 806692 % $ 125,228,541
Total gross assels $ 133,974,849 ¢ 805,692 § $ 134,781,541
Less: accumulated depreciation for:
Site improvements $ (1,680,228) $ {182,142) $ $ (1,872,370}
Building and building improvements (27,467,892} {2,674,542) (30,142,434}
Machinery and equipment (11,460,376} (843,680} (12,304,056)
$ (40,618,496) $ {3,700,364) $ $  (44,318,860)
Gowemmental activities capital assets, net § 93,356,353 § (2,893,673) $ $ 90,462,681
Business iype activities:
Machinery and equipment $ 2,262,148 3% 85,899 $ § 2,348,048
Less: accumulated depreciation {1,449,529) {80,413) {1.529,943)
Proprietary fund capital assets, net $ 812,620 $ 5486 § $ 818,105

Depreciation was charged to the following expense functions of the district:

Instruction:
Regular 5 1,920,375
Special 178,794
Other 9,271
Support Services:
Student and Insfruction related services 86,086
General and business related services 523,137
Plant cperations & maintenance 121,844
Transportation 794,638
Unallocated 66,220
Total Depreciaticn Expenses, Governmental Activities $ 3,700,364
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NOTE 4: LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Bonds are issued by the District pursuant to the provisions of Title 18A,
Education, of the New Jersey Statutes and are required to be approved by the
voters of the municipality through referendum. The proceeds of bonds are
recorded in the Capital Projects Fund and are restricted to the use for which they
were approved in the bond referendum. All bonds are retired in annual
installments within the statutory period of usefulness.

School Bonds issued by the District are entitled to and benefit from the provision
of the New Jersey School Board Reserve Act P.L. 1980 ¢.72. Basically, funds
are held by the State of New Jersey within its State Fund for the Support of Free
Public Schools as a schoo! bond reserve pledged by law to secure payment of
principal and interest due on such bonds in the event of the inability of the issuer
to make payments.

The following is a summary of changes in liabilities that effect other long-term
obligations for the year ended June 30, 2020:

Governmental Fupds;

Balance Balance Amounts Due
June 30, June 30, Within
2019 Additions Redugtions 2020 One Year
{as restated)

Bonds Payable $19,557 000 $2,190,000 $17,367,000 $2,215,000
Unamortized Bond Premium 721,776 104,468 617,308 104,468
Capital Leases Payable 434,473 $1,047,324 456,772 1,025,025 447 520
Compensated Absences 3,080,850 224,292 3,305,142
Net Pension Liability 39,115,042 - 2,175,468 36,939,573 -

$ 62,909,141 $ 12716816 § 4926709 § 50254048 §.. 2766968

Capital Leases Payable

The Board has entered info various capital leases for copier equipment and
school buses. The following is a schedule of the future minimum lease payments
under capital leases, and the present value of the net minimum lease payments
at June 30, 2020;

Year Amount
2021 3 470,155
2022 658,467
2023 62,740
2024 62,740
Total Minimum Lease Payments 5 1,254,101
Less: Amounts Representing interest 47,595

Present Value of Minimum Lease
Payments $ 1,206 506
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NOTE 4: LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

The annual requirements to amortize all debt outstanding as of June 30, 2020,
including interest payments on issued debt, are as follows:

Fiscal Year
Ended
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2021 $ 2215000 % 589650 % 2,804,650
2022 2,240,000 504,550 2,744,550
2023 2,275,000 425,125 2,700,125
2024 1,635,000 350,178 1,985,178
2025 1,625,000 301,002 1,926,002
2026-30 6,580,000 695,910 7.275,910
2031-32 797,000 43779 840,779

$ 17.367.000 3 2910194 3 20.277.194

The Bonds Issued and Qutstanding at vear end are comprised of the following issues:

$20,175,000 of 2010 bonds due in remaining annual
installments of $1,125,000 to $1,315,000 through August 2028
at interest rates of 3% to 4% $ 11,095,000.00

$6,712,000 of 2011 Refunding bonds due in remaining annual
instaliments of $340,000 to $400,000 through January 2032
at interest rates of 3% to 3.75% 4,502,000.00

$4,280,000 of 2015 Refunding bonds due in remaining annual

installments of $560,000 to $620,000 through January 2023
at an interest rates of 4% 1,770,000.00

$ 17,367,000.00
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NOTE 4: LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Under New Jersey Statutes the District may incur debt in an amount not to
exceed 4% of the averaged equalized valuation basis of real property. For the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the District borrowing capacity under N.J.S.
18A:24-19 would be as follows:

Equalized Valuation

Year of Real Property
2019 $6,889,559,254
2018 £,640,324,116
2017 6,357,150,803
$19,887,034,173
Average equalized valuation of property $6,629,011,391
School borrowing margin
(4% of $6,629,011,391) $265,160,456
Net bonded school debt and authorized but
not issued as of June 30, 2020 17,367,000
School borrowing power available $247,793,456
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PENSION PLANS

Description of Plans - All required employees of the District are covered by
either the Public Employees’ Retirement System or the Teachers' Pension and
Annuity Fund which have been estabiished by state statute and are administered
by the New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits (Division). According to the
State of New Jersey Administrative Code, all obligations of both Systems wili be
assumed by the State of New Jersey should the Systems terminate. The
Division issues a publicly available financial report that includes the financial
statements and required supplementary information for the Public Employees
Retirement System and the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund. These reports
may be obtained by writing to the Division of Pensions and Benefits, PO Box
295, Trenton, New Jersey, 08625,

Teachers’ Pension _and Annuity Fund (TPAF) - The Teachers’ Pension and
Annuity Fund was established as of January 1, 1955, under the provisions of
N.J.S.A. 18A:66 to provide retirement benefits, death, disability and medical
benefits to certain qualified members. The Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund
is considered a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan with a special funding
situation, as under current statute, all employer contributions are made by the
State of New Jersey on behalf of the District and the system’s other related non-
contributing employers. Membership is mandatory for substantially all teachers
or members of the professional staff certified by the State Board of Examiners,
and employees of the Department of Education who have titles that are
unclassified, professional and certified.

Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) - The Public Employees’
Retirement System (PERS) was established as of January 1, 1955 under the
provision of N.J.S.A. 43:15A to provide retirement, death, disability and medical
benefits to certain qualified members. The Public Employees’ Retirement
System is a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan. Membership is mandatory for
substantially all full-time employees of the State of New Jersey or any county,
municipality, school district, or public agency, provided the employee is not
required to be a member of another state-administered retirement system or
other state or local jurisdiction.

Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP) - The Defined Contribution
Retirement Program (DCRP) was established under the provision of Chapter 92,
P.1. 2007 and Chapter 103, P.L. 2007 to provide coverage to elected and certain
appointed officials, effective July 1, 2007. Membership is mandatory for such
individuals with vesting occurring after one year of membership.
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PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Significant Legislation

Effective June 28, 2011, P.L. 2011, c. 78 enacted certain changes in the
operations and benefit provisions of the TPAF and the PERS systems.

Pension Plan Design Changes

Effective June 28, 2011, P.L. 2011, ¢. 78, new members of TPAF and PERS,
hired on or after June 28, 2011, will need 30 years of creditable service and have
attained the age of 65 for receipt of the early retirement benefit without a
reduction of 1/4 of 1% for each month that the member is under age 65. New
members will be eligible for a service retirement benefit at age 65.

Funding Changes

Under the new legisiation, the methodology for calculating the unfunded accrued
liability payment portion of the employer's annual pension contribution to the
PERS, and TPAF. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) will be
amortized for each plan over an open-ended 30 year period and paid in level
dollars. Beginning with the July 1, 2019 actuarial valuation (July 1, 2018 for
PFRS), the UAAL will be amortized over a closed 30 year period until the
remaining period reaches 20, when the amortization period will revert to an open-
ended 20 year period.

COLA Suspension

The payment of automatic cost-of-living adjustment to current and future retirees
and beneficiaries are suspended until reactivated as permitted by this law.

Vesting and Benefit Provisions The vesting and benefit provisions of PERS
are set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A and 43.3B, and N.J.S.A. 18A'6C for TPAF. All
benefits vest after ten years of service, except for post-retirement healthcare
benefits that vest after 25 years of service.

Members are always fully vested for their own contributions and, after three
years of service credit, become vested for 2% of related interest earned on the
contributions. In the case of death before retirement, members’ beneficiaries are
entitled to full interest credited to the members’ accounts.
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PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Contribution Requirements The contribution policy is set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A
and N.J.S.A. 18:66, and requires contributions by active members and
contributing employers. Plan member and employer contributions may be
amended by State of New Jersey legislation.

Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate in both
TPAF and PERS. The actuarially determined contribution includes funding for
cost-of-living adjustments, noncontributory death bhenefits, and post-retirement
medical premiums. Under current statute the District is a non-coniributing
employer of TPAF (i.e. the State of new Jersey makes the employer contribution
on behalf of public school districts.

PERS Contribution Reguirements

Year Annual Pension Percentage of Net Pension
June 30, Cost (APC) APC Contributed Obligation
2020 $ 1,994,147 100.00% $ 1,994,147
2019 1,976,019 100.00% 1,976,019
2018 1,863,850 100.00% 1,863,850

During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020, 2019 and 2018, the State of New
Jersey contributed $12,128,127, $10,810,237 and $8,010,859, respectively to the
TPAF pension system on behalf of the District.

In accordance with N.J.S.9. 18A:66-66 during the years ended June 30, 2020,
2019 and 2018, the State of New Jersey reimbursed the District $4,079,732,
$3,998,429 and $4,076,206, respectively for the employer's share of social
security contributions for TPAF members, as calculated on their base salaries.
This amount has been included in the basic financial statements, and the
governmental fund statements and schedules as a revenue and expenditure in
accordance with GASE 68.
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68

Public Employees Retirement System {(PERS)

At June 30, 2020, the District reported a liability of $36,939,573 for its
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was
measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total pension liability used to calculate
the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as July 1, 2018
which was rolled forward to June 30, 2019. The District's proportion of the net
pension liability was based on a projection of the District's long-term share of
contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all
participating school districts, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2019, the
District's proportion was 0.2050093406 percent, which was an increase of
0.00634996086 percent from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2018.

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the District recognized pension expense of
$2,833,205 in the district-wide financial statements. This pension expense was
based on the pension plans June 30, 2019 measurement date.

At June 30, 2020, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to PERS from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflow of Infiow of
Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $663,017 $163,183

Changes of assumptions 3,688,552 12,821,609

Net difference between projected and actual earnings

on pension plan investments

583,106

Changes in proportion and differences between District
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 2,393,655 719,296

District contributions subsequent to the measurement date 2,145,990

$8,891,214 $14,287,194

The $2,145,990 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions
resulting from school district contributions subsequent to the measurement date
(i.e. for the school year ending June 30, 2020, the plan measurement date is
June 30, 2019) will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the
year ended June 30, 2021.
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 638
{Continued)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as
follows:

Year Ended
June 30 Amount
2020 ($731,774)
2021 (3,125,309)
2022 (2,754,868)
2023 (1,115,920}
2024 185,901

($7.541,870)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2019 measurement date was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2018, which rolled forward to
June 30, 2019. These actuarial valuations used the following assumptions:

June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018
inflation 2.75% 2.25%
Salary Increases
Through 2026 2.00-6.00% 1.65-4.15%
Thereafter 3.00-7.00% 2.65-5.15%
Based on Based on
Years of Service Age
Investment Rate of Return 7.00% 7.00%

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Below-
Median Income Employee mortality table with an 82.2% adjustment for males
and 101.4% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base
year of 2010 on a generational basis. Post-retirement mortality rates were based

on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median Income Healthy Retiree mortality table
with a 91.4% adjustment for males and 99.7% adjustment for females, and with
future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis.
Disability retirement rates used to value disabled retirees were based on the
Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled Retiree mortality table with a 127.7% adjustment
for males and 117.2% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from
the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Mortality improvement is based
on Scale MP-2019.
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ACCOUNTING AND_ FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68
(CONTINUED)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)

The actuatial assumptions used in the July 1, 2018 valuation were based on the
results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2014 to June 30,
2018.

Long-Term Rate of Return

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan
investments (7.00% at both June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018) is determined by
the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the Division of
Investment and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the
actuaries. The long-term expected rate of return was determined using a building
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of
return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation)
are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future
real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding
expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic rates of return for each major
asset class included in PERS's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2019 are
summarized in the following table:

Long-Term

Target Expected Real

Assets Class Allocation Rate of Return
Risk Mitigation Strategies 3.00% 4.67%
Cash Equivalents 5.00% 2.00%
U.S. Treasuries 5.00% 2.68%
Investment Grade Credit 10.00% 4.25%
High Yield 2.00% 5.37%
Private Credit 6.00% 7.92%
Real Assets 2.50% 9.31%
Real Estate 7.50% 8.33%
U.S. Equity 28.00% 8.26%
Non-U.S. Developed Market Equity 12.50% 9.00%
Emerging Market Equity 6.50% 11.37%
Private Equity 12.00% 10.85%
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Public Employees Retirement System (PERS} (Continued)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.28% and
5.66% as of June 30, 2012 and June 30, 2018, respectively. These single
blended discount rates were based on the long-term expected rate of return on
pension plan investments of 7.00% for both June 30 2019 and June 30, 2018
and a municipal bond rate of 3.50% and 3.87% for June 30, 2019 and June 30,
2018 respectively based on the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond index,
which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average
rating of AA/Aa or higher.

The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that
contributions from plan members will be made at the current member contribution
rates and that contributions from employers will be based on 70% of the
actuarially determined contributions for the State employer and 100% of
actuarially determined contributions for the local employers. Based on those
assumptions, the plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to
make projected future benefit payments of current plan members through 2057.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied
to projected benefit payments through 2057 and the municipal bond rate was
applied to projected benefit payments after that date in determining the total
pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Collective Net Pension Liability to Changes in_the
Discount Rate

The following presents the collective net pension liability of the participating
employers as of June 30, 2019 respectively, calculated using the discount rate as
disclosed above as well as what the collective net pension liability would
be if it was calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point
lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate:

1% At Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate increase
5.28% 6.28% 7.28%
District's proportionate share
of the net pension liability $50,754,736 $36,939,573 $31,649,260
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68
{CONTINUED)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in
the separately issued Financial Report for the State of New Jersey Public
Employees Retirement System (PERS). The report may be obtained at State of
New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits P.O. Box 295 Trenton, New
Jersey 08625-0295 http://www.state nj.us/treasury/pensions.

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF)

The employer contributions for local participating employers are legally required
to be funded by the State in accordance with N.J.S.A 18:66-33. Therefore, these
local participating employers are considered to be in a special funding situation
as defined by GASB Statement No. 68 and the State is treated as a nonemployer
contributing entity. Since the local participating employers do not contribute
directly to the plan (except for employer specific financed amounts), there is no
net pension liability or deferred outflows or inflows to report in the financial
statements of the local participating employers. However, the notes to the
financial statements of the local participating employers must disclose the portion
of the nonemployer contributing entities' total proportionate share of the net
pension liability that is associated with the local participating employer.

The portion of the TPAF Net Pension Liability that was associated with the
District recognized at June 30, 2020 was as foliows:

Net Pension Liability:

Districts proportionate share -0-
State’s proportionate share
associated with the District $330,407,591
$330,407,591

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018 which was rolled forward to June 30,
2019. The net pension liability associated with the District was based on a
projection of the District's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan
relative to the projected contributions of all participating school districts and the
State, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2019, the proportion of the TPAF net
pension liability associated with the District was .5383778865% which was an
increase of .0072892232 percent from its proportion measured as of June 30,
2018.
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68
{CONTINUED)

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the District recognized on-behalf pension
expense and revenue of $19,488,324 for contributions provided by the State.
This pension expense and revenue was based on the pension plan’s June 30,
2019 measurement date.

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2019 measurement date was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2018, which was rolled forward
to June 30, 2019. This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial
assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement;

June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018
Inflation rate: 2.25%
Price 2.75%
Wage 3.25%
Salary Increases:
Through 2026 1.55%-4.45% 1.55%-4.55%
Based on Years of Based on Years of
Service Service
Thereafter 2.75%-5.65% 2.75%-5.45%
Based on Years of Based on Years of
Service Service
Investment Rate of Return 7.00% 7.00%

Mortality Rates

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Teachers Above-
Median Income Employee mortality table with a 93.9% adjustment for males and
85.3% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year
of 2010 on a generational basis. Post-retirement mortality rates were based on
the Pub-2010 Teachers Above-Median Income Healthy Retiree mortality table
with a 114.7% adjustment for males and 99.6% adjustment for females, and with
future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis.
Disability mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled
Retiree mortality table with a 106.3% adjustment for males and 100.3%
adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year of 2010
on a generational basis. Mortality improvement is based on Scale MP-2019.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2018 valuation were based on the

results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2015 to June 30,
2018.
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68
CONTINUED

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

in accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan
investments (7.00% and 7.00% at June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018
respectively) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the
Directors of the Division of Investments and Division of Pensions and Benefits,
the board of trustees and the actuaries.

The long-term expected rate of return was determined using a building block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are
developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce
the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates
of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected
inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset
class included in TPAF's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2019 are
summarized in the following table:

Long-Term

Target Expected Real

Assets Class Allocation Rate of Return
Risk Mitigation Strategies 3.00% 4.67%
Cash Equivalents 5.00% 2.00%
U.S. Treasuries 5.00% 2.68%
Investment Grade Credit 10.00% 4.25%
High Yield 2.00% 5.37%
Private Credit 6.00% 7.92%
Real Assets 2.50% 9.31%
Real Estate 7.50% 8.33%
U.S. Equity 28.00% 8.26%
Non-U.S. Developed Market Equity 12.50% 9.00%
Emerging Market Equity 6.50% 11.37%
Private Equity 12.00% 10.85%
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68
(CONTINUED)

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued}

Actuarial Assumptions {Continued)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 5.60% and
4.86% as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. This single blended discount
rate was based on the long-term expected rate of return on pension pian
investments of 7.00% and 7.00, and a municipal bond rate of 3.50% and
3.87% as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively, based on the Bond Buyer Go
20-Bond Municipal Bond Index which includes tax-exempt general obligation
municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from
plan members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that
contributions from employers will be made based on the contribution rate in the
most recent fiscal year. The State contributed 50% of the actuarially determined
contributions. Based on those assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of current
plan members through 2054. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on
plan investments was applied to projected benefit payments through 2054, and
the municipal bond rate was applied to projected benefit payments after that date
in determining the totai pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

Because the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability is zero,
consideration of potential changes in the discount rate is not applicable to the
District.

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in
the separately issued Financial Report for the State of New Jersey Teachers
Public and Annuity Fund (TPAF). The report may be obtained at State of New
Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits P.O. Box 295 Trenton, New Jersey
08625-0295 hitp://www state.nj.us/treasury/pensions.
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ACCOUNTING 'AND FINANCIAL 'REPORTING FOR  POST-RETIREMENT

BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS = GASB 75

Plan Description and Benefits Provided

The State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan is a muitiple-
employer defined benefit OPEB plan, with that is administered on a pay-as-you-
go basis. Accordingly, no assets are accumulated in a qualifying trust that meets
the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The State Health
Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan provides medical, prescription
drug, and Medicare Part B reimbursement to retirees and their covered
dependents of local education employers.

The employer contributions for the participating local education employers are
legally required to be funded by the State of New Jersey in accordance with
N.J.S.A. 52:14-17.32f. Therefore, these local participating employers are
considered to be in a special funding situation as defined by GASB Statement No. 75
and the State is treated as a nonemployer contributing entity. According to N.J.S.A
52:14-17.32f, the State provides employer-paid coverage to employees who
retire from a board of education or county college with 25 years or more of
service credit in, or retires on a disability pension from, one or more of the
following plans: the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF), the Public
Employees' Retirement System (PERS), the Police and Firemen Retirement
System (PFRS), or the Alternate Benefit Program (ABP). Pursuant to Chapter 78,
P.L, 2011, future retirees eligible for postretirement medical coverage who have
less than 20 years of creditable service on June 28, 2011 will be required to pay
a percentage of the cost of their health care coverage in retirement provided they
retire with 25 or more years of pension service credit. The percentage of the
premium for which the retiree will be responsible will be determined based on the
retiree's annual retirement benefit and level of coverage.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

The State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan Membership
covered by the benefit terms consisted of the following:

Active Plan Members 217,131
Inactive Plan Members or Beneficiaries
Currently Receiving Benefits 145,050

Inactive Plan Members or Beneficiaries
Not Yet Receiving Benefits -0-
Total Plan Members 362,181
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR POST-RETIREMENT
BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - GASE 75 (CONTINUED)
Total Non-Employer OPEB Liability

The portion of the Total Non-Employer OPEB Liability that was associated with the
District at June 30, 2020 was as follows:

Total OPEB Liability:

District's Proportionate Share $-0-
State's Proportionate Share associated
with the District 120,981,415
120,981,415

The Total Non-Employer OPEB Liability as of June 30, 2019 was determined by

an actuaria! valuation as of June 30, 2018, which was rolled forward to June 30,
2019.

The Total Non-Employer OPEB Liability was determined separately based on
actual data of the District.

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the District recognized on-behalf post-
employment expense and revenue of $6,657,293.00 in the government-wide
financial statements for contributions provided by the State. This expense and
revenue was based on the plans June 30, 2019 measurement date.

At June 30, 2019, the District's proportion was 0.2623709163 percent, which was
an increase of .0000186961 from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2018.

The State, a Non-Employer contributing entity, is the only entity that has a legal
obligation to make employer contributions to OPEB for qualified retired PERS.
TPAF/ABP and PFRS participants. The District’s proportionate share percentage
determined under paragraphs 193 and 203 through 205 of GASBS No. 735 is zero
percent. Consequently, the District did not recognize any portion of the collective
net OPEB liability on the Statement of Net Position.
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ACCOUNTING AND_FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR POST-RETIREMENT
BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - GASB 75 (CONTINUED)

Actuarial Assumptions and Other Imputes

The total Non-Employer OPEB liability as of June 30, 2019 was determined by
an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018, which was rolled forward to June 30,
2019.The actuarial assumptions vary for each plan member depending on the
pension plan the member is enrolled in. This actuarial valuation used the
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement:

Inflation 2.5 percent

TPAF/ABP PERS PFRS
Salary Increases
Through 2026 1.55-4.55% 2.15-4.15% 2.10-8.98%
Based on Age  Based of Age
Thereafter 2.00-5.45% 3.15-5.15% 3.10-9.98

Based on Age  Based of Age

Preretirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2006 Headcount-Weighted
Healthy Employee Male/Female fully generational mortality projections from the
central year using the MP-2017 scale. Post-Retirement mortality rates were
based on the RP-2006 Headcount- Weighted Healthy Annuitant Male/Female
mortality table with fully generational improvement projections from the central
year using the MP-2017 scale. Disability mortality was based on the RP-2006
Headcount-Weighted Disabled Male/Female mortality table with fully
generational improvement projections from the central year using the MP-2017
scale.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018 valuation were based on
the results of actuarial experience studies for the periods July 1, 2012 - June 30,
2015, July 1, 2011 - June 30, 2014, and July 1, 2010 - June 30, 2013 for TPAF,
PFRS and PERS, respectively.

100% of all retirees who currently have healthcare coverage are assumed to
continue with that coverage. 100% of active members are considered to
participant in the Plan upon retirement, having a coverage blend of 85% and 15%
in PPO and HMO, respectively.
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR POST-RETIREMENT
BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - GASB 75 (CONTINUED)

Health Care Trend Assumptions

For pre-Medicare preferred provider organization (PPO) medical benefits, this
amount initially is 5.8% and decreases to a 5.0% long-term trend rate after nine
years. For self-insured post-65 PPO medical benefits, the trend rate is 4.5%. For
health maintenance organization (HMO) medical benefits, the trend rate is
initially 5.9% and decreases to a 5.0% long-term trend rate after nine years. For
prescription drug benefits, the initial trend rate is 8.0% decreasing to a 5.0%
long-term trend rate after eight years. For the Medicare Pan B reimbursement,
the trend rate is 5.0%. The Medicare Advantage trend rate is 4.5% and will
continue in all future years.

Discount Rate

The discount rate for June 30, 2019 and 2018 was 3.87% and 3.58%,
respectively. This represents the municipal bond return rate as chosen by the
Division. The source is the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index, which
includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of
AAJAa or higher.

Changes in the Total Non-Employer OPEB Liability

Shown below are details regarding The Total OPEB non-employer Liability
associated with the District for the measurement period from June 30, 2018 to
June 30, 2019

Balance at 6/30/17 $140,725,316
Changes for the year:
Service cost $ 6,245,978.00
Interest 5,206,159.00
Differences between expected
and actual experience (14,189,622.00)
Changes in assumptions or
other inputs (13,883,223.00)
Membership Contributions 111,807.00
Benefit payments - Net (3,235,000.00)
Net changes (19,743,901}
Balance at 6/30/18 $120,981,415
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BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - GASB 75 (CONTINUED)

Sensitivity of the Total Non-Employer OPEB Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rate

The following presents the total Non-Employer OPEB liability associated with the
District as of June 30, 2019, calculated using the discount rate as disclosed
above as well as what the total Non-Employer OPEB liability would be if it was
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage
point higher than the current rate:

June 30, 2018

1.00% At Discount 1.00%
Decrease (2.87%) Rate (3.87) increase (4.87%)
State of New Jersey's
Proportionate Share of
the fotal Non-Employer
OPEB Liability associated
with the District $143,024,660 $120,981,415 $103,459,311

Sengitivity of the Total Non-Employer OPEB Liability to Changes in
Healthcare Trends

The following presents the total Non-Emplioyer OPEB liability associated with the
District as of June 30, 2019, calculated using the healthcare trend rate as
disclosed above as well as what the total Non-Employer OPEB liability would be
if it was calculated using a healthcare trend rate that is 1-percentage point lower
or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate:

June 30, 2018

1.00% Healthcare Cost 1.00%
Decrease Trend Rate increase
State of New Jersey's
Proportionate Share of
the total Non-Employer
OPEB Liability associated
with the District $99,998,186 $120,981,415 $148,732,539
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BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - GASB 75 (CONTINUED)

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to Non-Employer OPEB Liability

At June 30, 2019, the State reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to retired school employee’s OPEB associated with
the District from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflow of Inflow of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected
and actual experience $ - $ 11,743,948
Changes of assumptions - 27,118,602
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on OPEB plan investments - -
Changes in proportion 233,606 -
$ 233,606 $ 38,862,550

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to retired school employee’s OPEB associated with the District
will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Year Ended
June 30 Amount

2019 ($4,742,122)
2020 ($4,742,122)
2021 ($4,742,122)
2022 ($4,742,122)
2023 ($4,742,122)
Total

Thereafter ($14,918,335)

($38,628,944)
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR POST-RETIREMENT
BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - GASB 75 (CONTINUED)

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred inflows
of Resources Related to Non-Employer OPEB Liability {(Continued)

In accordance with GASBS No. 75, the District's proportionate share of school
retirees OPEB is zero. There is no recognition of the allocation of proportionate
share of deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources in the
financial statements.

State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employee Plan Information

The New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits issues publicly available
reports on the OPEB plan. Those reports may be obtained by writing to the
Division of Pension and Benefits, PO Box 295, Trenton, NJ 08625-0295 or on
their website at:

hitp: /iwww state. nj.us/treasury/pensions/gasb-notices-cpeb.shimi

LITIGATION

The Board attorney's letter advises that there is no litigation, pending litigation,
claims, contingent liabilities, unasserted claims or assessments or statutory
violations which involve the Board of Education and which might materially affect
the Board's financial position.

CONTINGENCIES

The District receives financial assistance from the State of New Jersey and the
U.S. Government in the form of grants. Entitlement to the funds is generally
conditional upon compliance with terms and conditions of the grant agreements
and applicable regulations, including the expenditure of the funds for eligible
purposes. The State and Federal grants received and expended in the 2019-
2020 fiscal year were subject to the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB
Circular 15-08 which mandates that grant revenues and expenditures be audited
in conjunction with the District's annual audit if expenditures for federal or state
programs exceed $750,000. Findings and questioned costs, if any, relative to
federal and state financial assistance programs are discussed in the Single Audit
Section, Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. In addition, all grants and
cost reimbursements are subject to financial and compliance audits by the
grantors. The District's management does not believe any such audit would
result in material amounts of disallowed costs.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to toris; theft of, damage
to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions, injuries to employees; and
natural disasters. The District maintains commercial coverage covering each of
those risks of loss. The administration believes such coverage is sufficient to
preclude any significant uninsured losses to the District. Settled claims have not
exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance - The District has
elected to fund its New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance under
the “Benefit Reimbursement Method”. Under this plan, the District is required to
reimburse the New Jersey Unempioyment Trust Fund for benefits paid to its
former employees and charged to its account with the State. The District is billed
quarterly for amounts due to the State. The foliowing table is a summary of
District contributions, employee contributions, reimbursements to the State for
benefits paid and the ending balance of the District's expendable trust fund for
the current and previous two years:

Fiscal Interest  Board &Employee  Amount Ending
Year Earned Contributions  Reimbursed Balance

2019-20 § 16,142 § 118,019 $ 186,017 $ 1,390,082
2018-19 9,296 130,930 217,101 1,441,939
2017-18 6,179 124,624 79,070 1,518,814

FUND BALANCE APPROPRIATED

General Fund - Of the $8,495,911 in General Fund Balance at June 30, 2020,
$2,517,598 has been assigned for year-end encumbrances; $681,684 has been
restricted in the Capital Reserve Account; $450,000 has been restricted as
maintenance reserve; $725,000 has been restricted as Emergency Reserve;
$2,227,251 has been restricted as excess surpius resulting from the year ended
June 30, 2019; $1,692,313 has been restricted as excess surplus resulting from
the year ended June 30, 2020; and $202,065 is unassigned.
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CALCULATION OF EXCESS SURPLUS- BUDGETARY BASIS

In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A.7F-7, as amended by P.L. 2004,c.73 (81701),
the designation for restricted fund balance - excess surplus is a required
calculation pursuant to the New Jersey Comprehensive Educational
Improvement and Financing Act of 1996 (CEIFA). New Jersey school districts
are required to reserve General Fund balance at the fiscal year end of June 30 if
they did not appropriate a required minimum amount as budgeted fund balance
in their subsequent years' budget. Based on the calculation, the Union School
District has $1,692,313 excess fund balance resulting from the year ended June
30, 2020.

General Fund Expenditures

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 $146,409,055
Add:

Transfer from Capital Reserve to Capital Projects Fund 231,000
Less:

On-behalf TPAF Pension and Social Security Reimbursement

and assets acquired under capital leases 21,016,580

Adjusted General Fund Expenditures 125,623,475
Excess Surpius Percentage 2.00%
2% of Adjusted 2019-20 General Fund Expenditures 2,512 470
Add: Allowable Adjustments 941,380
Maximum Unreserved/Undesignated Fund Balance 3,453,850
Actual Unassigned/Undesignated Fund Balance 5,146,163
Excess Surplus $1,692,313
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DEFICIT FUND BALANCES / NET POSITION

The District has a deficit fund balance of $316,047 in the Special Revenue Fund
as of June 30, 2020 as reported in the fund statements (modified accrual basis).
N.J.S.A 18A;22-44.2 provides that in the event a state school aid payment is not
made until the following school budget year, districts must record the last state
aid payment as revenue, in the current budget year. The statute provides legal
authority for school districts to recognize this revenue in the current budget year.

For intergovernmental transactions, GASB Statement No. 33 requires that
recognition (revenue, expenditures, asset, liability) should be in symmetry, i.e. if
one government recognizes an asset, the other government recognizes a liability.

Since the State is recording the last state aid payment in the subsequent fiscai
year, the school district cannot recognize the last two state aid payments on the
GAAP financial statements until the year the State records the payable. Due to
the timing difference of recording the last state aid payment, the fund balance
deficits in the Special Revenue Funds do not alone indicate that the District is
facing financial difficulties. Pursuant to P.L. 2003, ¢.97, any negative unreserved,
undesignated general fund balance that is reported as a direct result from the
delay in the payment of state aid until the following fiscal year, is not considered
in violation of New Jersey statute and regulation nor in need of corrective action.
The District's deficit in the GAAP funds' statements does not exceed the last
state aid payment.
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CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNT

A capital reserve account was originally established by the Township of Union
School District by inclusion of $1,401,000 in the 2000-2001 school year, for the
accumulation of funds for use as capital outlay expenditures in subsequent fiscal
years. The capital reserve account is maintained in the general fund and its
activity is included in the general fund annual budget. The balance remaining in
the reserve as of June 30, 2020 is $681,684.

Funds placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects in
the district's approved Long Range Facilities Plan (LRFP). Upon submission of
the LRFP to the department, a district may increase the balance in the capital
reserve by appropriating funds in the annual general fund budget certified for
taxes. A district may also appropriate additional amounts when the express
approval of the voters has been obtained either by a separate proposal at budget
time or by a special question at one of the four special elections authorized
pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:60-2. Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-14.1(g), the balance
in the account cannot at any time exceed the local support costs of uncompleted
capital projects in its approved LRFP.

The activity of the capital reserve for the year ending June 30, 2020 is as follows:

Beginning balance, July 1, 2019 $564,364
Increased by:
Unexpended Appropriations $322,309
Interest 26,011
348,320

$912,684
Decreased by:
Utilized in adopted budget 231,000
Ending balance, June 30, 2020 $681,684
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MAINTENANCE RESERVE

In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:7G-13, a Maintenance reserve account was
established by the District. The Maintenance reserve account is maintained in
the general fund.

A district board of education or board of school estimate, as appropriate, may
increase the halance in the maintenance reserve account by appropriating funds
in the annual general fund budget certified for taxes.

A district board of education or board of school estimate, as appropriate, may by
resolution withdraw such funds from the maintenance reserve account and
appropriate into the required maintenance account lines at budget time or any
time during the year for use on required maintenance activities for a school
facility as reported in the comprehensive maintenance plan pursuant to N.J.A.C.
6A:26A-4.

The district board of education shall ensure that the maintenance reserve
account balance does not, at any time, exceed four percent of the replacement
cost of the school district's school facilities for the current year. if the account
exceeds this maximum amount at June 30, the district board of education shall
reserve and designate such excess in the subsequent year’s budget.

At June 30, 2020, the balance of the Maintenance Reserve Account was
$450,000 and is within the statutory limitations.

The activity of the maintenance reserve for the year ending June 30, 2020 is as follows:

Balance, June 30, 2019 and 2020 $450,000
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NOTE 16:

NOTE 17:

NOTE 18:

Township of Union School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2020

EMERGENCY RESERVE

An emergency reserve was established by the Township of Union School District
for the accumulation of funds for use as emergency expenditures in subsequent
fiscal years. The emergency reserve account is maintained in the general fund
and its activity is included in the general fund annual budget. The emergency
reserve account is used to fund unanticipated general fund current expense
costs and may be established to supplement the reserve in the district's annual
budget or through a transfer by board resolution at year end of any unanticipated
revenue and unexpended line item appropriation amounts in accordance with
N.J.S. A 18A7F-41.

The activity of the emergency reserve for the year ending June 30, 2020 is as follows:

Balance June 30, 2019 and 2020 $725,000

DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The District offers its employees a choice of the deferred compensation plans
created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b) and 457. The
plans permit participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years.
Amounts deferred under the plans are not available to employees until
termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency. Since the District
does not have any property or rights to the plan assets and no fiduciary
relationship exists between the District and the deferred compensation plan, the
plan assets are not included in the District's financial statements as of June 30,
2020.

INVENTORY
Inventory in the Food Service Fund at June 30, 2020 consisted of the following:

Food and Supplies $71,139

The value of Federal donated commodities as reflected on Schedule A (required
by the Single Audit Act amendments of 1996) is the difference between market
value and cost of the commodities at the date of purchase and has been included
as an item of non-operating revenue in the financial statements.
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NOTE 19:

NOTE 20:

Township of Union School District
Notes to the Financial Statemenis

June 30, 2020

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

The following interfund balances remained on the balance sheet at June 30,
2020:

Interfund Interfund
Fund Receivable Payable
General Fund $298,088
Special Revenue Fund $229,315
Enterprise Fund 68,773
$298,088 $298,088

All balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that short-term loans
were disbursed and payments between funds were received.

TAX ABATEMENT

As defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), a tax
abatement is an agreement between a government and an individual or entity in
which the government promises to forgo tax revenues and the individual or entity
promises to subsequently take a specific action that contributes to economic
development or otherwise benefits the government or its citizens. School districts
are not authorized by New Jersey statute to enter into tax abatement
agreements. However, the county or municipality in which the school district is
situated may have entered into tax abatement agreements, and that potential
must be disclosed in these financial statements. If the county or municipality
entered into tax abatement agreements, those agreements will not directly affect
the school district's local tax revenue because N.J.S.A. 54:4-75 and N.J.S.A
54:4-76 require that amounts so forgiven must effectively be recouped from other
taxpayers and remitted to the school district.

The District has identified tax abatement agreements that have been entered into
that require disclosure under this statement. The gross dollar amount, on an
accrual basis, by which the District's property tax revenues were potentially
reduced during the reporting period as a result of tax abatement agreements
totaled $930,918. It is important to note that the District Tax Levy is guaranteed
to be paid in full by the municipalities and that the District collected its full tax levy
for Fiscal Year 2020.
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NOTE 21:

NOTE 22:

Township of Union School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2020

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

The June 30, 2020 financial statements did not properly reflect the capital leases
payable or capital assets in the general fund in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. The result of these adjustments is reflected as
follows:

Governmental
Activities

Beginning Net Position 06/30/19 $32,854,829
Adjustments:

Capital Leases Payable 268,914
Capital Assets 157,183
Beginning Net Position 06/30/20 {As restated) $33,280,928

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The District has evaluated subsequent events occurring after the financial
statement date through December 31, 2020 which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued. Based upon this evaluation, the District
has determined that the following subsequent events needed to be disclosed:

Subsequent to the date of these Financial Statements the COVID-19 Corona
Virus has continued to spread across the State of New Jersey and the Nation as
a whole. The impact of this virus on the District’s operations in Fiscal Year 2021
cannot be reasonably estimated at this time but may affect revenues.

Issuance of Debt

The District issued $3,795,000 of Refunding School Bonds, Series 2020. The
bonds are dated October 13, 2020 with a final maturity date of January 1, 2032
with an interest rate of 4.00%.

The District issued $7,555,000 of Schoo! Energy Savings Obligation Refunding
Bonds, Series 2020. The bonds are dated December 17, 2020 with a final
maturity date of August 15, 2040 with an interest rate of 4.00%.

The District issued $7,450,000 of Refunding School Bonds, Series 2021, with a

date of delivery of May 18, 2021. The final maturity date for the bonds is January
1, 2029 with an interest rate of 5.00%.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - Part II
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES

84




8G52'41% £82'e28 [Ravg-13 (696'ves) 000'048
880'608 8L0's0E {e0z"a6) LP2'vOP
£el 510'600'E 4 e¥1'600'LL (8ey'102) 985'028' 1L
S¥5 yob'ozr'e 6v6'0zZ¥'e LS¥TLL Zeb'ave'e
£65°048°Z1 £65°045'2L SES'L 812'¢98'2L
ZEE'68S'E 268'585'L {L19'041) 800'9G.L"L
687’9128 969'GYE'BY1S LopP'eLLoZLS R TWRFATS
o6g'clL ozzest 08eZiL 0EETLL
068'El 0ez'98l 0se'TL 0882
G£9°089'12 GLL'GL0'0G oav'aLy'pe 8r'aiy'ye
2EL'6L0'F Zel'8l0'
£80°2L £80'Z1
ziG'TLE'LL ZTISFLE'LL
959°ELE sge'eLz
£LE'66F'Y £1e'66b'p
o8e'Lys 08E'LPE'e 000'00%'L 000'00%'E
608'P68"L 802'v68'L 608'F68"L
018's2F o/g'cer 0852y
202'PE8'Y 101'vee'y 104'vE6'p
$60'58.°62 $60'59.L'02 ¥60'69L'62
(06Z'1F) 15£'080'26 LG9'LTL'EE tG9'1ZL'Z6
(595'%1) Set'osh ooo'sby 000'ShY
(9g2'2¥) $9T'2S 000°0CH 008'00%
1L0°128 110'92 000's 000's
159 L5 168 189'146°L6S 169125168
V1oV OL WNid WISV I35and FIRNENaNTIAY EA50NE
AONVILVA TWNI4 1SHIASNYHEL L3Dang TYNIDIHO
020z 0% GNMNT O30NT 993 1vOSid
GRIERCEERER]
T# S

wb=Du WBIHXE

SBOIAIGS [EUOREONPY euoISsa)oId paseYIng
S1BYIED) JO SBlees
ssuieiBoid JeqnBas - vofonsy| sWoH
246 S9pRID
g9 sape’n
61 SapeID)
usyeBapury
SIauoeal Jo SaUReS
swelfiord senbal - uogongsug
HENFIXE INFHEND
SIHNLANIAXE

SONUBAAI [BI10L

$80IN0S [RISPSE) - [2I0L

{(Was) uatissinquisy PEJIPSIN
*S82N0S |elapad

SADIN0S BLYS - B0 L

{payabipng-ucu) e BUNOSS BI0S JYd ) Pasinquiey
{pajabpng-uoy) soueinsul Aygesip uusi-Buol Jeusg-uo
(perelpng-uou} uoRNAeoD uisud Jyd L JIEuag-u0
{patabpng-uou) asueinsy) AOINQUINOD-UCL JYd L Jeyag- uQ
(parebipng uou} ledspaut Jusuaile: 1sod Jydl Jieusq-ug
ple Areuiproeax]
pry uoneyodsuel ; jeauobales
piv Aumass [palobales
pie uoeonpa feroads jeouobelen
pie uogezienby

SI0UN0S RIS

$99IM0S [BO0[-SANUSADS [BJ0]

SNOBUEEISIL PAIOLISRILN
S[ENPIAIPA] WOJ) LIOHNY
Spun) BAISSA) [BIdED U0 PaULES JSaJaiul
Ana) xey (8907
ISS0IN0S |27
SINNIATY

85



yZO'R62 LS vZ0'86¢ 5 {riz 62£9) 86£8'429°/8
(co0's) 000'S
Li0'oy LL0'0F (2g0'1L1} 201°LS
£55'85C'L £55'352'L (221'€LE) 08L'Le6'L
8v6'C08 816'cat 000'89) Gye 1LY
6.1 624'L (el 821’8
820'€2 BZO'EZ {265'p2) 585" L7
LrL'eee LPL'EEE {reg'er) GEZ'8LE
08¥'L68 08258 965'95 ¥Z6'00€
{ooo‘s} 000't
2044y 104'1F {518'p2) Z89'24
£24'60€ €L4'80¢ 1£5'v8 FAZATSA
862'G6. 862'65. {c62'52) L58'084
Zvo Zro {8522} coy'e
TIDTL zi9'zs {6¥5'c) LZ2'9L
5v6'189 G6'189 (s98'gL) GE6'004
6¥6'Z6C$ 00Z'66¢'8% 6trL'269'8¢C LZ6'9v. 8Z2'GP6'LE
LiF'D arg'cie £2L'6LY (9€Z'FoL) 685'€8.
895'09 g2z il S6LLLL (oLp'asL} £02'696
£80'g¢ p0L'0E8 L8L'908 (sz1'z8L} ZLE'8PO'L
cLa'eg ore'zes g6Y 110 (og118) 918269
$.5'9%18 £PLEOL B1E'TIE'L BLE'TIE'L
Z5£'8.% 256£'8.8 (1#0'ce%) £6L'LPLS
N0V OL VNI WLV FE[ ) SININONINY E561d
FONYIHYA T¥NIA /SHAASNYHL L39ang IYNISIHO
0Z0Z 0t INNI U3UNT dvaA Y0514
QN4 TvdanNao
FHIGIHDS NOSIOvaN0 D AdY13D0NE
IBYISIAI00HIS NOIND 40 JIHSNMO L
SHIHENS

W00 LIFHX3

131UD/LUO0: BANOSSS 8101
safiddns jeseuacy
UCHANASU: 10} SSIB(RS JSH0
SIaUOe} JO SALBES

(121USD BDNGSBH00 SDIN0SIY

SMIRSIP SjdaInw elo L
sanddns |eseuan)
UORINISU 10§ SUE(RS JBUY0
S18YIL3] JO SRUBES
‘sanIgestn adningy

‘SANIRAESIP |2I0IABUS] |BIOL
s3lddns eisuany
ucHINASUL JO) SIURIRS JIBYID
SiauDes; Jo sa)ees
‘SDRHIGESID [BIOIABLDG

saniqesip abBenbue| Jo/pue Buiea) 10,
sapdns jBisuan
UORDNISUIL 10} $SLIRIES JBUID
S18UORS) JO saees

gsnicesp abenbue; Jo/pue Buuiesn

sweibosd seinfis) (@101

SHOOUIXS
sandans (eJaus
$801Uas paseynd JBUID
S3DIAIBS [BOIUYID) PESEYDING
SIVAISS |BLORBONDA-BUOISES)OId PRSEYDING
uoHonSL JO) §S1IBIES JSUID

LodNIsU; pangIasipun - swesboid Jenbay

86



112'86% SrPE6LS 12L'8¥ES iv9'LS vi0'LPES

[T A 068'22 6L1'GE (er9) 79.'6E

05¢ viL gL (oe+'2) 008t

869'cr 6C8'891 IES'ELT SZL'y ZL8'202

898'L 6L ro¥'sl {164°L) 91212

i £07°0t yoF' gL {1621} yiegl

£99'L gee't 0bo'e 000'¢

L 080"t 190"/ 16 ¥Gl'L 206676

t 090°Lt6 190" 2¥6 ¥S1'L £06'6Y5
#06'L60"L #06'L60'1 (Ls0'zZ8) GBB'EFL' L
#06°L60' 4 YO8 160"} (L80'zg) SRE'EYLL

£ 112" 1¥66 viZ V66 (e1v'e2T) 189'041°0%

g 501'86% 80196V z09'63) 90580

{008) 00%

L29'95 L2895 (s15'62} 9c1'e8

g rer Lty 187 Lyt £19'6L2 08122
Lbo'eet LreeslL (2L¥'LS) 6550881
ors oS (0o%'1) 000'z
ZLi'vr AV 4 (Le¥'Z9) £51°201
68€'L6 68¢'L6 £8F'Z3 9068
[ [ AT £5e 'Y 199288
Lov'0Z LOP'0Z {655'0} 956'5C
gLL'8 9106 {et'ze) §1z2e
GE0'L06% SE0'L06% GPE'EES 06G'CLES

TWNIOV GL TvNid TV 155and SINTNONTINY Hoang
JONYIHVA TN ISHIISNYHL L39ANG TWNIDIBO
Gc0c 0% INMT QJ0NT gv3aA 1vasid
R ERCEELED]
ENEERT

A0 LIgIHX3

SBHIAIDE JBINDILUNDEGY PRI0SUOdS [COLDS (810
s1o8{qo JBuyi0
s[euLIEw pue sanddng
ENE

SSNIAINDR JRN31LN0CO P2Iosuods [GOYds

1220} -sweubosd feuonedoA (101
sayddns (e1sua0)
SONIAIRS PASELIINA JAYIG
1220] -sweibold [ELORBIGA,

uogeanpa eniuing 110},
SIayoes) Jo saReS
uonesnpa enbung

[BIpBUIBYSIHS O15Eq ©I0]
Si2yoeal (0 SaUBIES
JeipaLaL/sS Jiseq

uoneanpy jenads |ejo L

U 7Y - SEIgesip poydssd jeto |
gai/ddns {eisusD)
UOINIISUI JO) SBLBIES JBULO
SIBUIES) JO SalBES

Bub ||y - SBRYIGESID JO0LUSRId

awn ped - sanjgesip jooyssaud 1o}
sayddns eiauas)
UCHIISLI 20} SSUR(es JAUID
SIBY0RS) JO SOURIRS

‘awy ped - SAREKESIP J00UISId

wsng Loy
sayddns (eisuaD
UQRONISUI 10 SILBIES JBLID
SJBYIES] JO SBULRS

wsnny

87



09518 o0¢'2468 09%'6£69 {090'co3) 9Z6EP0LS
0981 651 °GL 61401 8.¢ Lry ol

evZ'vy svZ'vt (529'6%) PEB'ES

268’816 268'8L6 (co9'st) 195'296
12¢'62 212'c62 Sv0'eee £2¢'¢ ZZL'66Z

129 129 {66) 0ZL
aoL'se 00g'v8 oot'eLL 000’1 00¥'86
122 264'802 PZO'B0Z ZZv's Z08'002
688'69 096G /602 It ANA 128219 eLoFisLL
£40'0L L8666V ¥90'915 £95'0LS 105's

626'L8 52648 G26'LS
18t'8Z reL'08Y'S 91Z7'606'S {cea’Lsy) 860'1L96'C

198'6Z 189'62 6es'yL) 000'0F

oov'rZ 00Y'vZ {nog' 22} 0002
008'y 00Z'r80 000'689 005°'Z2 005'999

L16'GET'S 116'682'S 908'/8S SOL'8P9'y
PRV 0Z% yLL8bs 261'69% fogz'v1L8) raF'cas
1892058 AR YRR TP LE0'Z6% ¥06's28% 6L5'202'168
62/'602 LIZTEL'E +00'CEE {€09'661) vOY'LBS'E
100'Z8 aLb'pe £Zr'98 (21p'prL) 006082
000’01 £8b car ol £BY 000'C)

g6 68 (508'61) 000'0Z
200'28 BER'ET Spa'sy {s50'sZ1) 008'002
111'68 259806 621 866 (ss0'p) £25'200'L
<869 Z99'8¢ REED 5/8'6 zZLa'se
Z90'sl L1048 8/¥°8L1 000% 8.rZLL
SEP'¥E §9Z' 403 004" LY {oo0's} 004'051
S6Z'EES 80£°'L28% £09'P0LS (026'8%) L6214

TWALOY OL TWNid ISV Fnang SINDRONINY 135009
ATINFIHYA TYNi fSYA4SNYHL 139004 TYNIOIHG
G202 0T N OH0NT gy 3y
G EREEERED]
FINGIASS NOSTEVINGD Adviaoand
TSHISIGTOGHES NGINT 30 dIHSNAO L
[N EES]

W 0u LIIHXE

SOVIAIDS iedy - [Bl0L

sSleuel pue saiddng
SB0IABS [ESIUUSS ] § 1BUGISSSJ0Id PESRUDING
saLeeg

SBMALS YIBSH

SHIOM SBDIAISS |BID0S PUB SJUBpUSlE - (B0}

s8(a0 BWNC
SPOIES IBIIUYDD |, § [BLOISSAIOId PRSEYDING
salges

SHOM SDDUALSSE [RID0S DUE SouepUaNY

uononAsU! el

Jayio - uong
saNDRd BlelS - ueging
BIRIS Byl LIyym paddedipuey Jo) $|00Yds ajeaud 10y uogm ]
sjooys Aep seinfis) pue 0SSO O uomn |
[2108dg - 100USS [BUOKEICA AUNOD 0 UoTkn |,
sefnfay - [00UDS [EUONEIOA AUNOD O} UORINY
[2103dS-31E1S SUI U SYFT JBLAQ OF uomny,
1enBay-alelS SU KA SYZ JALI0 0} uomng,
Uon3nunsL|
Samppuadxa pRNQUSIPLN

UOJONASUL - [BIGL
swesBod feuononsut 1800 (810

swgb0Id 00uDS S1RD JaYERI0I8] (B)O)
siuSje pue sayddng
$30)AISS paseydind B0
sapejeg

suresBosd [coyos JsyeRI0eg

SONBIUIE PRIOSUOTS JOCUDS 18I0
$109[00 BUIO
sjepalely pue sa)ddng
SBIINIAS PASEUDING
sayRes

SHIBILIR PSIOSUOTS |00



LIS 0Be'0Z9'LS 158°2£9°1¢ (ZrL'eotd) £95 L 18
$60'L cRe't 616G {aba'p) LZ0°0L
169'T £09'601 00E'ZLL 005'0¢8 008°'LE
§Zs't Siv 000'e 000'e
gLa'srZ 916'5PE {r1g'vy) 0EY'062
SGL'LL S¥6'yL o0L'ez (ozL've) $28'09
005'¥Z' L 956'PrZ'L (res os) 08Y'S6Z L
8La'vr 985240t g0zZ'zzL'e €Le's) 2Le'08L'e
yo8 ys8 (atrL'L) 000'Z
g58') £00'L 958'7 {rbL) 000's
g9L'2y TiR'99 189'604 {erg'Ls) 056'991
988'9 988'9 088'9
186°082 2£5°092 Log'y 8£5'95Z
PEYLPLE PER'LRL'E Z0P'8E 280'204'2
S §21'950°2 Z8b'880°2 (esv'os) SPE'80L'Z
oz8's 0zZ8's (5164) LT
8ge whZ 009 009
299'842 zo9'8le 191 105'8.2
86E'eLL'L 66E'ELL'L (opz'ey) 6012281
229'pee'? 229°'%08'T {zoo'vye) $Z9'80¢'e
Z2a'vege TCeYese (Zoo'rre) ¥ee's0e'e
182'561 ZF2'R8E'E 0ES'ELSE BEE'EYL 1el'0e
L26'2 9gl'9¢g £69'8¢ (850°¥7L) aLL'es
99.'251% LE2'PER’L £00°280'2 Z00'sgL 100'206°)
698'/88'1% 668°28¢8'18 (spg'ses) PLPSLELS
TYNLOV OL TN WALOY 135ang SINFNONINY T300N8
ADNVIHYA TN [SHI4SNYL 13908 IYNIDIHO
020¢ 0% INIMT U30NT JvaA 1V
ERCCERER]
[EERT

«b=0u LIEIHXE

$EDIAISS (BUONDNISH JO JuswaAcIdW! (810

f3fgo 180

sjeusiEW pue sayddng

saonas paseyomd PYIo

WesISSe [BaulD pue JE[aIoas JO ssuees

Hels [euoissajosd Jaio JO seuReS

uononsul jo Josiadng jo Aiees
'$20IAIRS [BUORINASUL JO JUSLLBACKILY

Sa01A98 [epads - SiUBPNS - SeIAleS Joddns JaU0 (elo)

spalgo BYO
(s59u3s 005-007) SIVIMISS ISLUN SO
SEIAISS [BUOHRINPS [BUCSSSj04d PaSBYING
yels painaypajeulLLs) of Juawhed uonedeA pasnun
Jaylo - se|eles
SIUBISISSE [EDUBID PUR [EUEJI0AE JO Salfees
yejs jeuoissejoud 190 Jo SauBeS
1S80IAJaS |enads - Sjuspn}s - saolales poddns sy

tembarsiuspns - $821AeS Hoddns Jsylo ol

s108lqo JsLl0

s{eusiew pue sagddng

SIURISISSE (EDLSE PUB |BLRISI09E JO Sauees

pers euoissajod JBULo Jo ssue(es
JgjnBar-siuapnis - samaas Loddas JBul0

SNBSS RIXB-SIUDPNS SANIAIBS uoddns U0 [2)0),

sa|eeg
SE0IAI9S BEXS-SIUOPMS $30IAI8% Loddns Buio

$e2IAIRS peje[el-sjuapn]s - S50IAIaS Hoddns Jsuio [0 L

sjeusiew pue saiddng
$SODIMIDS fBUCHEONPA- [RUCISSEICId PasSEYIINg
souges

SROIAIRS palB(R-SIUSPNIS - SSASS Loddns Jaul)

89



vFLErS 852 LO8'PS ZOV'0LE e 622'0EL8 €TO'TLLPS
viZLE GGE'Ea ogg'rLL (599'6} PEZ'PEL
g54'e LG4'es 908'96 {gea'se) L¥E'e6
1089 veLL Los'eL G6Y's 900'0L
808°2 ZBL'E 000's D00's
009 009 {00F' 1L} 0po'zZL
005'952'1 005'952'} 6409y LZPOLT'L
1/8'655 118'655 (yo1'e) G/B'ZeG
¥62'208'2 ¥61'C08'2 80T L5L 986'25L°C
TOL'GZL 1022992 £86'08L'Z 168°2vT S00'L¥S'E
Z69'9C Z69'9Z (30£'8) 600'sE
068 9682 9v.'8 (6ey'sa} S8lL'FL
§60'6 SB0'6 (506'GL} 000'52
154 (R+73 (etg's) £6Z'8
z58'L LEL'ET £86'5Z (zo6 98} S¥E'09
08¢ 80579 28E'GPY 8%0°09 0y8'68S
aee'L reL'sre 090'082 {16¥'52T) L18'68F
ziL 898"l 000'2 000z
z6% S6E'L 80'C cs'L 0060k
9e2'ol £19'v2 5¥6'0p 120'e 826'FE
006'05 000'05 {0oc's) 000'8S
#00'50L 9624422 L0g'Zeg £8£'0pS LLy'26E
008"y 008'y 008'y
LLL'L68 LLL'Leg LEY'ST 089'698
$5Z'89 961'0Z 0i¥'ss {e6.'85) 202'rst
250'8 166'L v Ll (eo0'ze) 15068
059'8 50Z'vL §S8'EZ (685'sE) PHR'8s
19515 096's LDE'5S (oc®) L0e'eg
ZLb'8 8/8'/e8 062" 1¥8 (665°53) 68Z'cLs
(0og'sL) 005'gL
LiF'6 $2O'ES SEY'TO (go0'c) 10§'29
LS POR'PBLS §58'7848 (e£y'50%) §8z'058%
FTHOLOV OL NI NIV 139008 SINHAGNIAY 1=590ng
FONVIHYA TN /SUAISNYHL L3DCNG TYNIDIHO
RHEMCEERER]
FINGIHDOS NOSIIVan0T ANYIIO0NH
ISTSISI TOCHDS NOINN 30 JTHSNAOL
FENEERH

W0 218IHX3

UOREHSKILUPE [COYDs $a0msas poddns |230)

sP2iae BWo

sjeusew pue sanddng

Sa0IAI9s paseyund Jeylo

SBOIAISS |E3IUYOS) PUE |RUOiSSe;0ud paseydind

S3RIeS B0

LHEIS |BUOISSSIOI JBUID 10 SOUERS

SIUBISISSE |BOUB(D PUE [BLIE)DIONS JO SBUBIES

siedpund juesissessiedinuyd Jo sauees
(UDRRJISILILLPR 1O0UIS $9MNAISS Hoddng

uolessupe j@euab saoines poddns o)

$83; pug sanp diysiequiay 308
sainypuadxa SNOsUR|BaSIN
oumsip jooyas aul lsuwebe swewsipny
sajidans BuneawyBuluses asnoy-ul 309
salddng feisuan)
saoIALes paseyaind 18Y10
Suoydala)/SuUoNESINWILIOY
SIVIAIBS {EDILIOS)} PESELDING
SEMAISS [2U0ISSRI0I paseyRInd SBUIG
sao|neg BuneauiBuzyeinospyay
$83) ypny
saonles |efay
LBIQ BOUBLLIBAOE) -SBUBIES UILPY |BIDUSD
saueeg

‘woneisiuILpe jeseuah seaInes Woddng

saninas Bules gels |euoionisy| 12101

(s2UBS DOS-COY) SA0IAIEG SSBUIING JBLIO
$80IAISS [BUGIEINPS [BU0ISS40Id PeseyIng
souR|Eg JAID

'se0pUss Buiuizl JBIS [eucnonsu

ARGl |0CYIS/21paLl JRUONEONRS [BJ0 1

s18lq0 J3U0
sjeuslew pue saddng
SBURIES

AJRIGH [OOYDS/RIPBUL {EUOLRINPT

90



6L6'GRES 81/'6L5'GS 9£9'606'¢S (989'¢8+%) SEE'ARE 9%
A Zer'8z0’L 6v¥'LGL L (0ot asi) 509'808"L
6E0'69L zov'ear 005259 00s'z59
8.2'41 i19'912 968°L2Z (v0L'82) 000'90%
GT6'S GiELLL 00£'€ZL Deg'ezL
¥89'0Z 668'.E1 PRSPIL (zgt'el) GoR'/41
8% 610'82 005'8 009'e 000'9¢
i9T'8 ioz's 92’8
geY'sPh 856°¢EZ vt'ZLE {gg0°28} 005'60¢
206 065'5i2'¢ 864'042' (zo0'802) 095'v3Y'S
£25°081 z2z' 188’1 561'780T (529°2L1) Yer'cel'c
arl'g 0£L'6¥ 6/8'65 {(bog'ze) 640'88
oL1'pa 925'8eZ tPe'L6Z (zgg'ze) 961'068
ZIE0L €BL'GLY $01'985 ¥88'87 122155
LLL'BZLL LAL'8ZLL (o1¥'12) L8S'BFL'L
L1516 g¢8'92L a86'6E L (gpe'ot) LE£6'844
¥92', 86'69 ziz'es {geg's) 052'08
488t G2 Z99'C (gee'y) 000°L
211089 £LL'0O9 (89L'62) LBZ'680
Gol'bp LOZ'FEL'L oZy'ell L Zor'nsL) 288°8YC' |
998’8 ¥eL'Y 00C's 000G
0Ty £16'p2 0ZL'82 {ooe'e) 0ze'Le
70Z'6 Zel'y reE'El ¥BE'SE
168128 295'88 57011 {rz'ol) £69'0Z1
ZLi'pL ZLEPL ZLi'vl
851'966% 851'0668 {£ee'zLLY) 16’891 LS
TNLOV C1 TWNid ToRLov 135ang SINIWONTNY TF5ang
ADNYIHYA T¥NIA /SY3ASNYHL 1390Nd TYNIDIO
{202 0% 3INIT Q30NY dvaA 19
RGERCCERED]
FTNUIHOS NOSHEYINOD KG9V 490NH
ISIEISITTO0HDS NOINM 40 <IHSNMDL
TFTHIAS

w0 LIBIHXG

ueld Jo S2UBUSIUILL 9 SUCHEISdO JBYIO JRIOL

(Auouee3) ABisug
(seq |esneN; Abisug
sanddns jeI8u9D
san1aes Auadoid paseysind Jayig
saones ew pue neda) ‘Buesi
$301AI8S [EDIULDS) DUB |2U0ISS3)od paseyng
LEIS POIBANPHEUILLS) O] JUBWARG UONEIEA PaSNUN
SOPIY [BUCIIDNNSL-UON JO SalReS
sauees
sugid Jo souBLBILIEL g SuolRISde IBW0

SDYIFLY [00YIS 10} oUBUIUIBW pAINDSI [B10)

109090 Jaulo
sayddng |[2I8usH
$SUSS BdURUBIRL pue ‘Heda) "Buesl)
salees
SBNIDEY ICOYSS 1C) souBuSjuteW PaINbay

ABOJOULDE] UONBULOME UDHBNSIILIDE 210 |,

s[euglep pue salddng
SBOINBS PASBUDING JBUID
S3lIBES
ABOIOUGRS) UOIBLLIOJUI UORRISHINLIDY

SODIUDS [RAUDD [BIC

saIN}PUBCHX T SNOBUE)STSIN
siguae pue saddng
(5908% DOS-00F) Samaas paseyaund sy
SanAas [BuoISSjoud paseyding
HEIS PRILaPIIBUILLLISL O] JUSWAB UONEDEA DRSNUN
SRR
ISHOIES JRBUSD

91



Z69Z66'LS S62°L0E'9% 986'66¢ 8% i28'615'L8 191'v8. 9%

S60°L g80'L {coz'e) 00g'e
GLv'y rSe8sl §28'291 {gLp'9L} THZ'BLL
218'28 LF9'6L £92'Z5 azz'LL 1801y
$/6'90¢€"L 50°LIS'E 2€9'448'F LLO'er L)L 129'1EL'E
6VS' L6 868°'1Z HWTELL {eg4'002) £o0'0ze
z 602'88 LL2'8g (P09'72) GLEEDL
yre'L £08'0€ LP9'8E Lr9'EL 000'12
£E9'SL 298'8 008’62 (oo0'vr) 005’69
619'sLL £EV'BOE Z50'ELY S0E'66 280518
vSO'6 #80'v8 BEL'EE (L10'8) $51'66

Fx:T AN L8211 (e12'e) 005'FL
€148 L8108 oLe et 68998 129'05 1

LS rLE'SL (085'y) 00c'oz
0L5'v8Z Zov'0se°L Z26'0P9'L (862" 1¥) 822'088°L
8188 201818 PBZ'vLG v6Z'v LG
¥18°579 0v9'/20'6 £5Y'C19'6 (ce6'ors) CLY'02§'0L
L06'GS #LE09Z' Lzz'ole'L (ozz'063) LepoLy'lL
G6Z'L Lpe'L GE9'yL 002t geb'Ll
S06'0 o'l 15802 0007 L1591
gzL'e 95¢'a6 0ZL'101 0ZL'1L0}
$6Z'28 £42'16 985°6Z1 {248'L6} epGLal
829 LO9'6P0'L B¥5'050"} {zov'sil) LBB'SeL')
0ip'eZ ¥8E°09E §64'¢8¢ {65¢ 58} v51 69Y
62 6l 8rl'gZ LBE LY 168 LY
Lo1'vg 6£8'L 000'9 {ooo'oe) 000'9E

LG vilL'g piL'G

£ZZ'rZes £22¥Zes {res'Los) £51°GBES

TYNLEIV OL 19N LY 135ang SINTWNGNTAY 135and
ADNYIEYA ToNId /SHIASNYHL 13908 TYNIDIH0
OZ0Z O ANNT A0NS SYIA T90Sid
W ERCEERER]
FTNOIR0S NOSIHVaNDD Adv130aad
IE IS0 TOOHRSS NOINT 40 dIHSNMOL
g# T33HE

wbe0u LIIHX3

SEINIDS GORELOTSLES JUSPRIS (B30 )

spRlas 1Bu0

sa|ddns voneuodsur ]

$911d¢ins e1susg
SYSL10 2 $083 -

(SIUBPNIS UCHEINPS (E1D9US) SB2IAISS PRIDENUOD
SYSLO 88083 -

{s)uapn;s Jndal) SIS PBIBAUOD
slopuana - {jooyds pue

BUIOY UASMIDY LEY) JBYIC) SBDIAIBS PIDRIIIDD

YIS aoiou D) -{SludwAed JO N3 U PIB) $801AI8S JIBU0D

Y28 JapeyD -(suawAed Jo N3y Ul PIE) SHIIAIBS DBV

(sjuswAed Jo N2 Ul ple) SaIeS POIOBAUDD

SADIAISS WIBW pue sieda) 'Buues|)

‘ARG FRDIUYID YL PUE JOId PISEYIING JBYID

we:boig "suel) vS 1D '8 1S - 894 Jwawabeuep
(I6OuRs pUR AWOY Usamiaq Uey) Jayio}

uogenodsuel) jdnd 1o} S1BIES
12)nfal - {00YOS PUB BICY UFMIBQ)

upnepodsues; skind Jo) saueieg

SBPIT BUONSNISUI-UOU JO SBue|es

$89IM8s vogenodsues (uspns

SEOAISS JUR(d JO soURLSIUIBLY B SuoiRIado (Blo )
Aunoag jEjo )

s198i00 18410
sa|ddng ip1auss)
SHVIIDS ADUBUBILIEN pue Niedey BuesiD
$80IAIES [EDIUYDE} PUB (BumSs3joud paseydnd
saleleg

‘fjunoeg

sSpuneic) Jo desydn pue 3:ed el

$3)|ddng |esauen)
SDOIAIES [BD1UYIB] PUB [BLOISSH;0.0 poseyIIng
1iB)S pasaypaleuS; 0} Juawhed UCBIRA PISNUN
saueeg
spuncigy Jo dasydn 2 91

92



(Gr.'6/8'9L8) 85Y'129'SrLS ¥LL'1yL'821LS £8£'80¢'LS 9ZL'EEP LTS IASNILXT ANTFHRNG - STHNLIGNIXE 101

(Lzr'zas'iy) LL£'260'%6 182'0LL'al [ T L09'6EL'GL SUNNIPUSEXD PRANAUISIPUN (IO |
(682'61.4'02) GGZ'61L'0C
(zei'6L0'p) 284'640'F {p315HpPNG-UCU} SUOHNAUILOD AJINIS8S [RIDOS J¥d L Pasinquidy
(ego'zL) £80'21L {pa1aBpng-uou) sauesInsul AMaesip WISl-6udt Avdl JIBUsG-u0
(zzg'v1B'sL) ZIS'PLE'LL (payeBpng-uou) uonnguod uoisusd Jydl HBYsq-u0
(ses'e12) GGe'ELZ (pajebpng-uou) souRINSU) AOINGLIUCS-UOL JydL HEUSG- uQ
(eLE'66¥%'%) ELE'E6Y b {parebpny uow) feaIpew JuaLwalRal 150d dydl Jeusa-uQ
B99'E6L 699'¢61 899'C61 sijauag pejedo|g BloL
P85'LL 86 LL PRG'LL UEIS paMdypaleUIWLR) O) Juawhed
%918 PASNLN - §80IAISS UoNeuodsuRY JUSPMS
580'0 G60'9 gs0'9 Hers palsy/peleuiuls)
oy JualAed 3215 pasnUN - 3801IAUSES AJUNDAS
0gs 065 [134 Hels palayPalBUILLIB) 0} JuswAed
OIS PASNLN - SPUNC:D JO dasydn) pue aen
S12'LL SLALE SLLLE HENS PRIRY/PIBUILLS)
o} Juswhed ¥oIS pasnun - Sa0IAIAS RIPOISAT
00¥'02 00%'0Z 00¥'0Z #EIS paaey/paleulLIE) o) Juswhed
HOIS PISNUAN - $TIIASS LONSNNSYI JO JUBWBACIW;
000'0¢ 00008 00C'0€ Lels paigdypsleuiuna) 03 Juswied
NS pasnun -[e1oeds -saciuss poddns ey
GZE'ELL gze'etl §TE'ELL HEIS pRINBYPEIRLILLS; O) Juawded yois pasnun - swelfiod seinbay
‘S)ysuSq pajeICHY
116'22 Z269°182°L2 0/9'658'LZ $29'c8Y S¥D'9.€'LT slysuaq paiedoyeun |BJO |
{o0g'coy) 000’00 HEIS P3IASXDIBLILLGZ] 0} Juswhed OIS pasnun
8.8'08 6.8'08 {180's2) 906111 JUSBSINGUIS UBHIN |
BLF'0LP' L BIP'0LP AL ley'eEe ZrO'SEL'LL Sieueq yileeH
$69'067 P69'064 r69'0F 000'054 UORESUBCLLIOD S UBUDLIOM
(ooo'02) 000’08 uanesuaduwon Juswiodueun
L1L'e 166'2.2 79g%'L8 GGL'¥E 906'9% SUOBNGLEUOD UDISUad
£00'6 BOB°LYE'L CL6'9G6'L Bs2' 462 £EL'669'L S - SUCHNGUILIOD JUBLIBIEBS JBUIQ
POC'SOS 0ZL'L0%'18 ¥86'24P'LS 6850828 86£'ZPT' LS SUOKBNQUIUGED AHINIIS |RID0T

SIBUDQ PIYEDO)IELN

YLDV 01 T¥Nid WNLY T35and SINIWNANTNY 139004d
JONVIEVA ToNid {SH34SNVHL £390N9 TYNIORO

U UEsUU U —

0202 0% ANMIGIANT ¥VIA OIS
GNN3 TVH3INTD

ENEEN
W00 LIBIHXS

93



LSH' 2L S LF9'986' 1S (zZ1g'9zR'2s) (9£0'Ered) (941'¢c86'L$) saUNpUBdXs (J9pun) Ao
sanuaAal jo (Aoua1dyap) $590x3

(PR2'698'61) GS0'80F OF4 €LC'6ES6CL 9E9'ere 1£8'660'9Z1 IVLOL ONVHD ONMA TYHIN3D
{se0'srs) can'ars SOCUDS JBLBYD O} SPUN; JO JSYSUBIL
SI00HIS HALHYHO
1966 165482 BGE 164 FASEE ozZe'vLL AYILN0 TYHAYD IVACL
{rze'zee) $94'868 09t'801 000'S 0ov LAl 'AISS 'ISUOD PUB LOBISINDOR SSIle) [BI0L
{rze' 26T} $2e'L6Z (pa1ebpng-uou) sasean [enden spun painboy slessy
08¥'i0L 09F' L0t ooy Lol Buipuny Qg U0 H01UDS 109D 10} JUBLUSSISSY
000's 000's 000'¢ $108{00 JBLO
SIDIAIDS LUCYSNISUSD puUB uonisinbae sanyoe
882 'Z0¢ Z18'88¢ 260'L69 ZEE'ER 9947209 sdinbs |E101
£l L2V LL 00621 {oosor} 00082 tuesBoid [RUOKONLSUI JSUI0 PUR PRI0SUOUS j004OS
182'CE KT AAS 182'2¢ 45 SepelD
L06'0F 206'0% £06'0% g-p SepRIg
208’1y Z06'LY Z06'6E 000'2 G-l SapRI9)
816'701 626201 {1202ty 000'051 renbay- sasnY (COUOS
000'68 ZZTVE zezT'eT! €8s 6L8'6L1 Aunoag - sanipuadxe penquisIpun
P96 9£0'¢0L 000'¥0L 000'6E 000'69 spunalb Jo deasdn pue sl - saunjipuadxe pAINgUISIPUN
9.8’ L2 PZ0'LE 000°59 000'69 SA0IAIRS {BIPOISND ~ SAUNPUadXa PSINGLISIPUN
£20'09 0Z6'L 868640 {000'5) 66622 Aunoe; (0ouRs 10} soUBUBIIIEW PRAMbSY - JuBWdnba psinguisipun
6652 869°ZL gLl 9BY'ZL 401 Ojuf ULPY - Juswdinbs peinguisipun
0o0's 000's Q00's 2Uix3 9 PRIEPY - ASS Loddng - SaUNYpUadXs PEINQLASIPUN
=7 956°9% Pi8'6 (£02'14) Lis'ce ‘Bay - sluaprlg +'AI9S Loddng - SRUNIPUSEKS PRAINQLISIPUN
§2e'es gzZE'eS 5Te'e UONDrISUE - SBINJPUSTEXS PRINQLISIPUN
Jwawdinbz
{000's$) 000’5 anjasey [ende] o; ysodeg ise:au

SAYILNO Y LIaYD

TP L0V OL 173 IVNALOY 139and SININANIWY LAwdng
JONYIMVYA TN /S¥I4SNYHL 1333N9 IYNIORIO

0202 08 FNNT JIGNE HY3A TwOSid

GNNd TVH3NGD
FTNAIHIS NOSIHVYEN0D AV .LID0NY
LIS TOOH3S NOINN 4G HHSNMOL

OL# Ld3HS
<0 LIgIHXS

94



1316'G6F 8
(gge'i62'e)
969" IpL LIS
0S8'ESF S
£16'269')
1G8'222'2
aon'szs
000°05F
¥80'189
966°L15'2%
¢80'598'sS 860'4vL LIS B0 F3E 9% (o£9'eras) 5¥Z 80T 43
\Z5IZr'6 L2r'22y 6 \ZP TV 6
Ga0'€8L's §.T'5TE'L (z19'250'¢) (9c9'cras) (g21'v12'2)
££O'619 ££9'R8E (00¢'L£2) (000'1€2)
vZE'I6T ¥Z% 462
{ooo'1£2) (00c'LE2%) (coo'1e28)
80E'2288 80€'27¢$
TeNLOY OL 1vNId TWNLOV 39408 SINIWGNINY 135ang
AONVIHTA TN /SHIASNYHL LADANg WNISIHO
Gic0z OF NI QAN dYFA TvOsI4
RN EENED]
FINGIHDIS NOSIavaW0D AdvLaoangd
IHTHISITTO0RDS NOINA 30 dIHSNAMDL
TT# 13343

W0 LIBIHX3

(VD) Spun 4 [Bluswwanos) sad souejeqg pung

$i158q dyvs Lo pazizbooas Jou sjuawied e alels pue |RIspa4 15E

SIUSWBIEIS PLN JUBLILIBAOL) O] UONRIIoU038Y

souereq puny pauBisseun
Jead Juauno - sniding $580XE - PAIIASSY

saunypuadxa s.Jead juanbasgns 1oy pareubisap - sniding $580x8 - PERLISaY

anasal Acusbuels - palowsay
PAI9SR) BOUBUSIUIELE - PAIOLISEY
aa1388) |E)des - paouIsay
SADUBIQUINDUE pud-Jeah - paubissy
uonenudessy

QOF UL 'SBOUBEG Pun
L AR '$EaURlE] DUNL

gasn BudueLy Jay;o pue S3INIpUSexa (JBpun) Jaa0 S80in0s
BuIDuUELL 19Y)0 PUB SBNUSAZ) 0 {ASUd1Den) $S8IXT

{s93n) $90In0s BuIBLRUY JSUIO 1104

(p21efipng-uon) 8seyaind ases

pury sidalo:d (endes - o 1s)suey BunesadQ

pury spoalosd (endes - v segsuen Bunesad
(888N} sa2In08 Bupuew) JBUIG

95



96

I T A - G60°2/6'9% 428'622'8% 2l¥'SE6 1% 0G6E'262'9% saumpuadxs j8j01
6££°96 yep's £44'60) (ggz'e) 1€0'801 Juswdinby |BUORONNSLY
1SIDIAIBS UOIONISUOD B uolisinboe seipoe
982 L6E Yr1'e60'2 ZEV'PBY'T 16€°95. 180822t $201M8S Hoddns j2j0)
o¥9 051 064 062 005 spslge w0
PZeLLL ZEV'ePL 952'992 1£9'82T czZi'ey s|eusiew pue sayddng
L25'85 Z81°eg €OLLLL 295'65 SEL'2G sao1nuas peseynd JBUIO
Loy op 0B9'€G0"L LPLP0L'E §28'v0Z 91¢£'668 siyouUSq 29A0)dWS - $IDIAISS [BLOSID
8209 ££5'¢6 1/6'66 £0L'05 8916y SS0IAISS [BUONBINPS B [RUOISSL0Id peseydingd
YeZ'86 6E5'9LE £LL'VLE £65'811 08196 SBIIAIDS |E0IUYDS) B |RUOISSBJ0Id paseyling
[E I 869'vLL 6EY'9LL 6EF'9LL sioyoea | iajsep JO salees
LOb'06 1906 008'y 196'6Y SIUEISISSY (EOLSID PUE |BLIBIRIDDG JO SSUBES
100’99 0Lp'2GL 1i¥'8E2 000'EL LiP'GOZ HEJS |BUOISSBJ0I JBYID JO SaLeeS
000'201 00020k 000'20L UOHONIISU] JO Si0SIAtadNG JO SalIRES
828z 666'9¢1 1ZE'6E1 LPe g 98t LG SOUE|ES U0
:sa0iAles poddng
IYL'BGL Li¥'948'Y £29'6£9'G G8c'081'L gez'qat'y UOHSNJISUL (€10
58Z°'50Y 6292 £LO'VEY CIZ'9Y 0ze'LL spalgo auwo
wLLE 09022 viL'v2 (659" ey oz syoogqaL
£LG'V6 £69'2GL 90Z'L¥8 920'vot 081'€8¥ soyddns jeisuss
6¥L'684'L 6¥L'68L'} 6tl'L82 000°20G"1 uon
Leeel lee'el 908's G28'9 seoes peseyond YO
00526 9..'961 9/2'682 (68¥'LT) 59/'9LE SO2IAIDS |BIIUYDS] | [euotssajoid paseydInd
08892 062'86¢ OFL'SZY {(086) 0EL'vEY uclionRASU 10} SSUBLES JBUIC
veE'ozLs 09€'889'1$ PEL'YLIELS 6ZC'9ELS GOC'8L9'1S SIOYoES] JO SBUEIES
HOIONAISL
SAYNLIANTSXT
(£L2'8¥2'18) G50'£.6'08 129'52Z'8% LIV'CEE 1S 0GE'262'98 SONUSARS |BJ0L
(56Z'5EY) 985°'cl 088'8v¥y 088'spy $90IN08 JBYO
{¢08'66%) £9e'ge8's 991'96L 'y 68Y /6% L L29'00L'2 $20IN0S jRIBpa
(5.9'c5¥8) 90L'szZL'cs 182'86'CS (zeg'Zi %) £/9'166'cS S0IN0S 2IBIS
'SINNIAIY
TYALDY OL NS LY i3vana SININGONIWY 135ang
IONVIHYA NI /SHA4SNYHL LIDANSG TYNIDINO

0202 0% INNT J=20NT SAVEA TYOSid ¥0d
CEEENRELREERNGEERS

FINAIHOS NOSIHYAWOD AxvL30and

W&y LIGIHXZ



TOWNSHIP OF UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

BUDGET TO GAAP RECONCILIATION

NOTE TC REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Sources/inflows of resources

Actuai amounts (budgetary) "revenues” from the
budgetary comparison schedules

Difference - budget to GAAP

Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from
GAAP in that encumbrances are recognized as
expenditures, and related revenue is recognized.

State aid payment recognized for GAAP siatements in
the current year, previously recognized for budgetary
purposes.

State aid payment recognized for budgetary purposes,
not recognized for GAAP statements until the
subsequent year.

Total revenues as reported on the statement of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances
- governmental funds.

Usesioutflows of resources

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total outflows" from the

budgetary comparison schedules

Difference - budget to GAAP

Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered
but not received are reported in the year the order is
placed for budgetary purposes, but in the year the
supplies are received for financial purposes

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances
- governmentat funds.

97

EXHIBIT "C-3"

SPECIAL
GENERAL REVENUE
FUND FUND
$148,345,696 $6,977,055
(712,312)
3,283,173 229,315
(3,251,785) (316,047)
$148,377,084 $6,178,010
$146,409,055 $6,977,055
(712,312)
$146,409,055 $6,264,742




REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PART Il
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SCHEDULES RELATED TO ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING FOR PENSION {GASB 68)
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EXHIBIT "L-4"

TOWNSHIP OF UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION PART {II
EFOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PERS)
Change in benefit terms:
None

Change in assumptions:

The following assumptions were used in calculating the net pension
liability in their respective accounting periods:

Long-Term
Measurement Expected Actuarial
Date Ending Discount Rate of Experience
June 30, Rate Return Study Period
2019 6.28% 7.00% 07/01/14-06/30/18
2018 5.66% 7.00% 07/01/11-06/30/14
2017 5.00% 7.00% 07/01/11-06/30/14
2016 3.98% 7.65% 07/01/11-06/30/14
2015 4.90% 7.90% 07/01/08-06/30/11
2014 5.39% 7.90% 07/01/08-06/30/11
2013 5.55% 7.90% 07/01/08-06/30/11

TEACHERS PENSION AND ANNUITY FUND (TPAF)

Change in benefit terms:
None

Change in assurmnptions:

The foliowing assumptions were used in calculating the net pension
liability in their respective accounting periods:

Long-Term
Measurement Expected Actuarial
Date Ending Discount Rate of Experience
June 30, Rate Return Study Period
2019 5.60% 7.00% 07/01/15-06/30/18
2018 4.86% 7.00% 07/01/12-06/30/15
2017 4.25% 7.00% 07/01/12-06/30/15
2016 3.22% 7.65% 07/01/12-06/30/15
2015 4.13% 7.90% 07/01/09-06/30/12
2014 4.68% 7.90% 07/01/09-06/30/12
2013 4.95% 7.90% 07/01/09-06/30/12
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFGRMATION - PART IV
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SCHEDULE RELATED TO ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING FOR POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN
PENSIONS (GASB 75)
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EXHIBIT "M-1"

UNION TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE DISTRICT'S
TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
LAST THREE YEARS

Measurement Date Ended June 30,

2019 2018 2017
Total Non-Employer OPEB Liability - State’s Proportionate Share
of Total OPEB Liability Associated with the School District
Balance at 6/30 $220,598,168 $256,298,313 $276,132,530
Changes for the year:
Service cost 8,623,406 10,142,025 12,246,214
interest 8,766,235 9,437,523 8,137,888
Differences between expected
and actual experience (31,635,870) (24,270,102}
Changes in assumptions or
other inputs 3,036,030 (25,314,744) {(34,500,500)
Membership Contributions 185,285 203,869 218,594
Benefit payments - Net {6,250,608) {5,898,716) (5,936,413)
Net changes {16,975,522) {35,700,145) (19,834,217)
Balance ai 6/30 $203,622,646 $220,598,168 $256,298,313
Covered Employee Payroll 72,431,597 70,282,429 69,682,267
District's Proportionate Share of the Total Non-Employer
OPEB Liability as a percentage of the District's
Covered Employee Payroll -0- -0- -G-
State's Proportionate Share of the Total Non-Employer
OPEB Liability associated with the District as a percentage
of the District's Covered Employee Payroll 281.12% 313.87% 367.81%

Note: Schedule is intended to show ten year trend. Additional years will be reported as they become available.
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EXHIBIT "M-2"

UNION TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION PART IV
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Change in benefit terms: None

Change in assumptions: The discount rate changed from 3.87% to 3.50% as of
June 30, 2019.

107



OTHER SUPPLLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUND DETAIL STATEMENTS

Special revenue funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue
sources that are restricted or committed to expenditure for specific purposes other than debt
service or capital projects.
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EXHIBIT "E-2"

TOWNSHIP OF UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
SPECIAL REVENLUE FUND
SCHEDILE OF PRESCHOOL EDUCATION AID
BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Budgeted Actual Variance
EXPENDGITURES:
instruction:
Salaries of Teachers $1.052,888 $1,015,841 $37.047
Other Salaries for Instruction 423,140 398,750 24,390
Purchased Professional - Educational Services 15,000 15,000
Other Purchased Services (400-500 Series) 6,525 6,525
General supplies 94,165 70,540 23,625
Total instruction 1,591,718 1,485,131 106,587
Support Services:
Salaries of Supervisors of Instruction 102,000 102,000
Salaries of Other Professional Staff 205,471 149,270 56,201
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 47,461 47,461
Salaries of Master Teachers 176,439 174,698 1,741
Personal Services - Employee Benefits 899,316 868,649 30,667
Purchased Professional - Educational Services 8,000 1,862 6,038
Other Purchased Professional Services 6,000 6,000
Other Purchased Services {400-500 series) 52,135 52,135
Supplies and Materials 8,000 1,633 4,367
Other Objects 560 500
Total support services 1,503,322 1,345,673 157,649
Facilities acquisition and const. serv.:
Buildings
Instructional Equipment 61,031 61,031
Noninstructional Equipment 4,444 4,444
Total faciliies acquisition and const. serv. 65475 65,475
Total expenditures $3,160,515 $2,830,804 $329,711
CALCULATION OF BUDGET AND CARRYOVER
Total 2019-20 Preschool Education Aid Allocation $3,160.515
Add: Actual PreK Carryover {June 30, 2019) 135,585
Total Preschool Education Funds Available for 2018-20 Budget $3,296,100
Less: 2019-20 Budgeted Prek (Including
prior year budgeted carryover) 3,160,515
Available & Unbudgeted Preschool Education Aid Funds as of June 30, 2020 $135,585
Add: June 30, 2020 Unexpended Preschool Education Aid 328,711
2019-20 actual Carryover-Preschool Education Aid $465,296

2018-20 Preschool Education Aid Carryover
Budgeted for Preschool Programs 2020-21 $135,585
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND DETAIL STATEMENTS
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TOWNSHIP OF UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Revenues and financing scurces:
Capital Cutlay transfer to Capital Projects

Total revenues and financing sources

Expenditures and financing uses:
Construction services
Operating Transfers Out-General Fund

Total expenditures and Transfers

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over {under)
expenditures

Net change in fund balances
Fund balance - beginning
Fund balance - ending

Recapitulation of Fund Balance

Committed:
Year-end encumbrances
Other purposes

Fund balance - GAAP basis (exhibit B-1)

116

EXHIBIT "F-2"

231,000

231,000

386,092
322,309

708,401

(477,401)

(477,401)

630,004

152,602

57,998
94,604

162,602




TOWNSHIP OF UNICN SCHOOL DISTRICT

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE, AND

PROJECT STATUS - BUDGETARY BASIS

DISTRICT-WIDE UPGRADES

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Capital Outtay Transfer
Total revenues

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Purchased professional & technical services
Construction services

Transfer io general fund

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) or revenues over
{under) expenditures

Additional project information:
Grant Date

Bond Authorization Date
Bonds Authorized

Original Authorized Cost
Additional Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost
Percentage compietion
Original farget completion date
Revised target completion date

& &

EXHIBIT "F-2a"
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Revised
Authorized
Prior Periods Current Year Totals Cost
1,140,000 § 1,140,000 % 1,140,000
1,140,000 % 1,140,000 & 1,140,000
58,810 % 58,810 % 93,630
742,908 49,976 792,881 1,048,370
288,309 288,308
801,715 § 338,285 1,140,000 % 1,140,000
338,285 % (338,285}
N/A
N/A
N/A
1,140,000
1,140,000
100%
12/30/2018
6/30/2021



TOWNSHIP OF UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE, AND

PROJECT STATUS - BUDGETARY BASIS
DISTRICT-WIDE DOOR REPLACEMENT

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Revenues and Cther Financing Sources
Capital Outlay Transfer
Total revenues

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Purchased professional & technical services
Construction services

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) or revenues over
{under) expenditures

Additional project information:
Grant Date

Bond Authorization Dale
Bonds Authorized

Original Authorized Cost
Additional Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost
Percentage Increase over Original
Authorized Cost

Percentage completion
Original target completion date
Revised target completion date

EXHIBIT "F-2b”

Revised
Autherized
Prior Periods Current Year Totals Cost
$ 434,263 % 434,263 § 434,263
$ 434,263 % 434263 % 434,263
$ 24950 % 24950 % 24,950
117,694 186,126 303,720 409,313
$ 142,544 & 186,126 328670 % 434,263
$ 291719 § {186,126) 105,593
N/A
N/A
N/A
303,000
131,263
434,263
43%
76%
12/1/2019
613012021
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TOWNSHIP OF UNION SCHOOQL DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE, ANR

Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Capital Quilay Transfer
Total revenues

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Purchased professional & technical services
Construction services

Transfer to general fund

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) or revenues over
{under} expenditures

Additional project information:
Grant Date

Bond Authorization Date

Bonds Authorized

Original Authorized Cost
Additional Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost
Percentage Increase over Original
Autherized Cost

Percentage completion

PROJECT STATUS - BUDGETARY BASIS

EXHIBIT "F-2¢"

DISTRICT-WIDE UPGRADES
FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
Revised
Authorized
Prior Periods Current Year Totals Cost
$ $ 231,000 231,000 231,000
3 $ 231,000 231,000 231,000
$ $ 21,000
149,991 149,991 210,000
34,000 34,000
3 $ 183,991 183,991 231,000
$ $ 47,009 47,009
N/A
N/A
NIA
231,000
231,000
80%
6/30/2021

Original target completion date
Revised target completion date
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FIDUCIARY FUND DETAIL STATEMENTS

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets when a school district is functioning
either as a trustee or as an agent for another party.

Unemployment Compensation
Insurance Trust Fund: This trust fund is used to account for board contributions which are utilized to pay
unemployment compensation claims as they arise.
Scholarship Trust Fund: This trust fund is used to account for assets held by the district for grants to students
where there are no restrictions regarding the use of principal and interest.

Student Activity Fund: This agency fund is used to account for student funds held at the schools.

Payroll Agency Fund: This agency fund is used to account for the payroll transactions of the school district
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EXHIBIT "H-2"

TOWNSHIP OF UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

STATE
SCHOLARSHIP UNEMPLOYMENT
FUNDS INSURANCE TOTAL
ADDITIONS:
Contributions:
Employee contributions $ $ 118,019 $ 118,019
Other 67,000
Total contributions $ 67,000 $ 118018 § 118,019
investment earnings:
Interest $ 3896 % 16,142 & 16,142
Net investment earnings $ 3896 § 16,142 & 16,142
Total additions 3 70,896 % 134,161 $ 134,161
DEDUCTIONS:
Unemployment claims $ $ 173,568 $ 173,568
Miscellaneous 12,449 12,449
Awards 37,790
Total deductions $ 37790 % 186,017 $ 188,017
Change in net position $ 33,106 3 {51,857} % {51,857)
Net position beginning of year $ 222989 % 1441939 3 1,441,939
Net position end of year % 256005 3% 1,300,082 % 1,380,082
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EXHIBIT "H-3"

TOWNSHIP OF UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
STUDENT ACTIVITY AGENCY FUND
SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENBED JUNE 30, 2020

BALANCE BALANCE
JULY 1, 2019 ADDITIONS DELETIONS JUNE 30, 2020
ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 412917 & 541382 % 541,161 3 413,138
Total assets $ 412,917 § 541382 % 541,161 § 413,138
LIABILITIES:
Due student groups:

Senior High School:

Union Township High school activities  § 253,331 % 301,898 % 338,178 $ 217,051
Athletic Account 54,140 161,137 125,830 89,447
Junior High School:

Burnett 32,004 13,829 16,007 29,825

Kawameeh 58,700 39,960 42,536 56,124
Elementary Schools:

Battle Hill 3,328 3,571 3,403 3,496

Ceniral Five - Jefferson 224 224

Connecticut Farms 2,438 49 59 2,428

Franklin 48 7,475 7,003 520

Hannah Caldwell 4,147 4,368 3,685 4,830

Livingston 659 4,484 340 4,803
Washington 3,898 4,612 4,119 4,390

Total liabilities $ 412817 § 541,382 & 541,161 § 413,138
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TOWNSHIP OF UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

PAYROLL AGENCY FUNDS

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

EXHIBIT "H-4"

BALANCE BALANCE
JULY 1, 2019 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS JUNE 30, 2020
ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,604,136 43,782,281 43580424 % 4,805,993
Total assels $ 4,604,136 43,782,281 43,580,424 % 4,805,993
LIABILITIES:

Net Salary Payable 3 3,502,085 3,685,323 3,562,085 § 3,685,323

Payroll deductions and withholdings 819,828 40,096,958 40,012,078 904,709

Due to other funds 282,223 66,261 215,962
Total liabilities $ 4,604,136 43,782,281 43,680,424 $ 4,805,993
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LONG-TERM DEBT SCHEDULES

The Long-Term schedules are used to reflect the outstanding principal balances of the long-term
liabilities of the District. This includes obligations under Serial Bonds and Capital Leases.
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STATISTICAL SECTION
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TOWNSHIP OF UNION SCHOOL. DISTRICT
STATISTICAL SECTION

Contents Page

Financial Trends:

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how
the district's financial performance and well being have changed over time. J-1 10 J-4

Revenue Capacity:

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the district's
most significant local revenue source, the property tax. J-5 to J-8

Debt Capacity:
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability
of the district's current levels of outstanding debt and the district's ability to issue
additional debt in the future. J-10to J-13

Demaographic and Economic Information:

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the district’s financial activities take place.  J-14t0 J-15

Operating Information:
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand
how the information in the district's financial report relates to the services the district
provides and the activities it performs. J-16 to J-20

Sources

Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive annual
financial reports (CAFR) for the relevant year.
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TOWNSHIP OF UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES - UNION
UNAUDITED

Township of Union

Qverlapping Rates

Calendar General Total Direct
Year Ended Obligation School
December 31, Basic Rate (a) Debt Service (b) Tax Rate
2019 $ 8.838 3 0.265 3 9.103
2018 8.682 0.268 8.950
2017 B.514 0.273 8.787
2016 8.330 0.275 8.605
2015 8.150 0.270 8.420
2014 5.315 2.932 8.247
2013 7.811 0.279 8.090
2012 7.588 0.252 7.840
2011 7.332 0.229 7.561
2010 6.950 0.140 7.090

Source: District Records and Municipal Tax Collector

(Rates are per $100 of assessed value)

NJSA 18A:7F-5d limits the amount that the district can submit for a general fund tax levy. The levy when
added to other components of the district's net budget may not exceed the prebudget year net budget by
more than the spending growth limitation calculated as follows: the prebudget year net budget increased

Township of
Union

$ 7.267

7.150
7.037
6.698
6.739
6.528
5.413
5.261
5.104
5.667

Union
County

3.363
3.208
3.287
3.144
3.175
3.149
3.087
2.997
2.883
2.591

by the cost of living or 2.5 percent, whichever is greater, pius any spending growth adjustments.

EXHIBIT "J-7"

Total Direct and
Overlapping
Tax Rate

$ 19.733
19.398
19.111
18.447
18.334
17.924
17.600
17.098
16.558
15.348

{a) The district's basic tax rate is calculated from the A4F form which is submitted with the budget and the Net

valuation taxable

(b} Rates for debt service are based on each year's requirements.
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Fiscal Year
Ended
June 30

2020
2018
2018
2017
2016
2015
2014
2013
2012
2011

EXHIBIT "J-9"

TOWNSHIP OF UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
UNAUDITED

Taxes Levied
for the
Fiscal Year

94,320,881
92,543,494
90,508,938
88,795,357
87,085,760
84,490,626
82,919,685
81,094,875
79,359,803
77,275,754

$

Collected within the Fiscal Year of the Levy

Amount

94,320,891
92,543,494
90,508,938
88,795,357
87,085,760
84,490,626
82,919,685
81,094,875
79,359,903
77,275,754

Percentage Collections in
of Levy Subsequent Years

100.00% -
100.00% -
100.00% -
100.00% -
100.00% -
100.00% -
100.00% -
100.00% -
100.00% -
100.00% -

Source: District records including the Certificate and Report of School Taxes (A4F form)

Note: School taxes are collected by the Municipal Tax Collector. Under New Jersey State Statute, a municipality is
required to remit to the school district the entire property tax balance, in is the amount voted upon or certified prior
to the end of the school year.
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TOWNSHIP OF UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
RATIOS OF NET BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING

UNAUDITED

General Bonded Debt Outstanding Percentage of

Fiscal Year General Net General Actual Taxable
Ended Obligation Bonded Debt Value {(a) of
June 30, Bonds Qutstanding Property Per Capita (b)
2020 17,367,000 17,367,000 0.26% $ 297
2019 19,557,000 19,557,000 1.89% 333
2018 21,732,000 21,732,000 211% 370
2017 23,837,000 23,837,000 2.31% 402
2016 25,882,000 25,882,000 2.50% 442
2015 27,842,000 27,842,000 2.69% 481
2014 30,042,000 30,042,000 2.93% 520
2013 31,872,000 31,872,000 3.11% 554
2012 33,587,000 33,587,000 3.25% 587
2011 28,320,000 28,320,000 3.70% 497

Note: Details regarding the district's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.
(a) See Exhibit J-6 for property tax data.

(b) Population data can be found in Exhibit J-14.
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TOWNSHIP OF UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT

AS OF DEGEMBER 31, 2018

{(UNAUDITED)
Debt

Governmentai Unit Outstanding
Debt repaid with property taxes

Township of Union $ 59,557,606
Other debt

Union County 608,951,895
Township of Union School District Direct Debt 18,557,000

Total direct and overlapping debt

Source: Municipal Chief Financial Officer, County Treasurer's Office

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the District.

Estimated
Percentage

Applicable (a)

100%

9.52%

160%

$

$

EXHIBIT "J-12"

Estimated Share
of Overlapping
DCebt

59,657,606

57,972,220

19,657,000

137,086,826

This schedule estimales the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne by the residents and
businesses of the district. This process recognizes that, when considering the District's ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the
entire debt burden borne by the residents and businesses should be taken into account. However this does not imply that

every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for repaying the debt, of each overlapping payment.

(a) For debt repaid with property taxes, the percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using laxable assessed property
values. Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion of another governmental unit's taxable value that is within
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EXHIBIT "J-14"

TOWNSHIP OF UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

(UNAUDITED)
Unemployment
Population (a) Per Capita Rate (d)
Year Union Personal income (b)  Personal Income (c) Unicn
2018 58,488 $3,992,507,856 $68,262.00 3.50%
2018 58,604 3,811,369,744 65,036.00 4.20%
2017 58,460 3,665,269,960 62,526.00 4.40%
2016 58,302 3,672,163,540 61,270.00 4.90%
2015 57,600 3,411,648,000 59,230.00 5.60%
2014 57,615 3,228,259,435 56,129.00 6.40%
2013 57.427 3,167,156,477 55,151.00 8.00%
2012 57,130 3,035,145,510 53,127.00 9.20%
2011 56,970 2,807,179,100 51,030.00 9.70%
2010 56,798 2,824,734,934 49,733.00 9.60%

Source:
(a) Population information provided by the NJ Dept. of Labor and Workforce Development.
{b) Personal income has been estimated based upon the municipal population and per capita personal income presented.
{c) Per capita personal income by municipality estimated based upon US Department of Commerce, Bureau of
Economic Analysis.
{d) Unemployment data provided by the NJ Dept. of Labor and Workforce Development.
* information not applicable prior o merger
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District Building
Elementary
Battle Hili
Square Feet
Capacity {studenis}
Enrollment
Connectlicut Farms
Square Feet
Capacity (students)
Enroliment
Franklin
Square Feet
Capacity (students}
Enrcliment
Hamilton
Square Feet
Capacity {students)
Enrollment
Hannah Caldwell
Sguare Feet
Capacity (students)
Enroliment
Livingston
Square Feet
Capacity {students)
Enroliment
Washington
Square Feet
Capacity (siudents}
Enroliment
Jefferson / Central Five
Square Feet
Capacity (students)
Enrollment
Middle School
Burnet
Square Feet
Capacity (students)
Enroliment
Kawameeh
Square Feet
Capacity (students}
Enroliment
High Schoot
Union High School
Sguare Feet
Capacily {students)
Enroiment
Other
Field House
Square Feet
Capacity (students)
Enrollment
Administration Building
Square Feet

Number of Scheols at June 30, 2020

Elementary - 8
Middle School - 2

Senior High School - 1

Other-2

Source: District records

TOWNSHIP OF UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

8

L BUILDING INFORMATION

2020

57,375
387
398

57,740
513
358

58,635
581
450

35,328
312

87,000
550
574

48,600
525
400

64,815
656
559

68,940
660
526

167,163
1,036
1,028

105,202

822
™™

358,161
2,228
2,207

11,316

25,200

UNAUDITED

201

57,375
387
398

57,740
513
358

58,635
581
450

35,328
312

87,000
560
574

48,600
525
400

64,615
656
559

68,940
660
526

167,163
1,036
1,028

105,202
822
701

358,161
2,228
2,207

11,316

25,200

147

2018

57,375
387
409

57,740
513
397

58,635
581
421

35,328
312

87,000
550
494

48,600
525
433

64,615
656
598

68,940
660
562

167,163
1,036
977

105,202

822
665

358,161
2,228
2,151

11,316

25,200

57,375
387
414

57,740
513
407

58,635
581
451

35,328
312

87,000
550
529

48,600
525
424

64,615
658
813

68,940
660
533

167,183
1,036
983

105,202

822
681

358,161
2,228
2,195

11,316

25,200

EXHIBIT "J-18"

2016 2015
57,375 57,375
387 387
398 428
57,740 57,740
513 513
417 422
58,635 58,635
581 581
431 442
35,328 35,328
312 312
87,000 87,000
550 550
582 619
48,600 48,600
525 525
440 432
64,615 64,615
656 656
608 608
68,940 68,240
6560 860
535 558
167,163 167,163
1,028 1,036
978 1,034
105,202 105,202
822 822
675 637
358,161 358,161
2,228 2,228
2,200 2,324
11,316 11,318
25,200 25,200



J0692e L § Cl6889L & OpRPLLZ & 96606EC ¢ 989°GSE'L & LIGDB6L § 645596k $ G29'808'L S ¢Bv'esR’t & gezeel  § B0 puUeId
ZsL'sl6 ¢ Ti2es0L  $ E£450SLL ¢ BBYOOEL § Gveesch $ teceoct ¢ 806922t  § crEeect $ LT ¢ e8Lwerh  $ + SB0E SPIM-IDIASIG
05.2'28¢ $ 669105 $ 192’986 $ _g6¥'se0’lL  $ _Lsv'ig9 $ 91’289 $ _B699'989 ¢ _ete'ads $ _Llg'ese ¢ ogr'2e9 $ Sal|ioe, jOOYIS B0 L

ShLlE SPo'le ¥9.'98 02e'se £89°'8L 2al'el el 9687, LeZ'es ¥81'85 YiIN fismpied yeuuey
846'Ck 082'3L 660'6LL 2ee'eZl THO'SY 869'50L 6.8'8L ¥60'2L 9/¢e'69 ¥EO'OL YiN jBuing
ovs'os yzs'zet yOv' 182 0Lz'eLs 028'2£2 05¥'59E ZZr'TL Poe'2el 16Z'6L1 866'081 YiIN 10oYas YBiH o
908'sZ i25'1e 195'€0L 0.5'98 0s8'sY 985'56 pea'sy 9Li'eh GEL'LS £82'88 YiIN Yasluemen
S2L'8E £12'08 osg'se 696'ZP Lie'es Z96'LY 220'99 186'2¢ all'ge 85¥'9¢ VIN uolBulysEA
66L°LE sav'Le ¢I5'8% LL16'6L LE¥'LE €Z9'8E olLs'es 80.'0€ 99¢'6¢ 69.'6¢ YN ueysBuian
8Z1'0t 1818 yie'le g9k°Le 5£9'62 £29'0¢ oor'se £P9'VE LLE'PE YIN BALE [2RUSD)
agl's 802'€2 ceL'sE 218'62 3op'¥2 0oZ've £04'5E ELL4E 9889 625'69 WIN uopen
961'65 189t 298'c8 259'St £60'82 G9t'6E gie'zs pso'sl gz1'e¢ 69¥'9E YIN iz Gl
6r2'51 £527'81 ors'or L2286y £28'Y2 log'se 286'ch £rG' 2 £9z'2s 85425 WIN Stred InofosuUoy
166'VE $ o9eg'ec $ 0622 $ 259'52 $ ssg'el $ yol'or § wel'oe $ 808'TZ $ Zob'PT $ 18C'%E $ VIN HiH apeg

35414 f434 {2074 02 SL02 9LOE 02 8102 6102 020Z (s # walaid safior] jooyos
X0K-192-000-1 L

WBE=Cu LIBIHXE

SAILNOVS TO0KDS HOd IONYNILNIVIN ARHINDIY - STUNLIONIAXT QILNBIHLSIANN

@ITanvan
SUYIA TvOSId N L L8V

148



EXHIBIT 7)-20"

UNION TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

INSURANCE SCHEDULE
JUNE 30, 2020
UNAUDITED
Company Type of Coverage Coverage Deductible
NJSIG Property Blanket Building & Contents-
Replacement Cost Values $ 256,102,240 $ 5,000
NJSIG Excess Liability
-General Aggregate 11,000,000
-Automobile Liability 11,000,000
-Including Auto Physical Damge ACV based on Schedule 1,000
-Employee Benefits Liability 11,000,000
NJSIG Excess Worker's Compensation & Employer's Liability
-Excess Worker's Compensation Statutory
~Excess Employer's Liability 3,000,000 per acc.
NJSIG Commercial Crime Coverage
-Faithful Performance 1,000,000 1,000
-Forgery & Alteration, Employee Theft 500,000 1,000
-Money & Securities {inside/outside) 100,000 1,000
-Money orders/Counterfeit 100,000 1,000
-Computer Fraud 1,000,000 1,000
AlG Insurance Group School Board Legal Liability and Employer
Practices Liability 5,000,000 50,000
Chubb insurance / Ace
American Insurance Underground Storage Tank 1,000,000 / 2,000,000 5,000
X1 Catlin/US Fire Student Accident Insurance 5,000,000 1,000
Surety Bonds
- Business Administrator/Board Secretary 470,000

Source: District Records
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SINGLE AUDIT SECTION




EXHIBIT "K-1"

SUPLEE, CLOONEY & CoOMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

308 East Broad Street, Westfield, New Jersey 07090-2122

Telephone 908-789-9300 Fax 908-789-8535
E-mail info@scnco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL.
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF BASIC FINANCIAL.
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education
Township of Union School District
County of Union

Union, New Jersey

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the
financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Township of Union School District (the
"District") as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the District's financial statements, and have issued our
report thereon dated December 31, 2020.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the
District's control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on
the financial statements but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the District’'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Township of Union School District's internal control.

A deficiency in internal confrol exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A maferial weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the District’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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SurLER, CLOONEY & COMPANY

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that
might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit
we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct
and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required {o be reported under Government Auditing Standards. We noted other matters that have
been reported to the Union Board of Education of the Union School District in a separate Auditor's
Management Report on Administrative Findings — Financial and Compliance dated December 31,
2020.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness
of the District's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit

performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal
control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

/%—Ak, Ll ¢ by,
CERTIPIED PYBLIC ACCOUNTANTS * [

PUBLIC SCHOOL’ACCOUNT?NT NO. 962

December 31, 2020
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EXHIBIT "K-2"

SUPLEE, CLOONEY & COMPANY

CERrRTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
308 East Broad Street, Westfield, New Jersey 07090-2122
Telephone 908-789-9300 Fax 908-789-8535

E-mail info@scnco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO MAJOR FEDERAL
AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS AND
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE
UNIFORM GUIDANCE AND NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR 15-08

Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education
Township of Union School District
County of Union

Union, New Jersey

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal and State Program

We have audited the Township of Union School District's compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the federal OMB Compliance Supplement and the New
Jersey OMB State Grant Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on
each of the Township of Union School District's major federal and state programs for the year
ended June 30, 2020. The District's major federal and state programs are identified in the
summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, reguiations,
contracts, and grants applicable to its federal and state programs.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Township of Union
Schooi District’s major federal and state programs based on our audit of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America; and the audit requirements of Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards {Uniform Guidance) and New Jersey OMB Circular
15-08. Those standards, the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08 require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with
the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on a major state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
the Township of Union School District's compliance with those requirements and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for
each major federal and state program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination
of the Township of Union School District’s compliance.
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SUPLEE, CLOONEY & COMPANY
Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program

In our opinion, the Township of Union School District complied, in all material respects, with
the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on each of its major federal and state programs for the year ended June 30, 2020.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Township of Union School District is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Township of
Union School District’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could
have a direct and material effect on each major federal and state program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on compliance for each major federal and state program and to test and report on internal
control over compliance in accordance with Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-
08, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Township of
Union School District's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal confrol over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
confrol over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompiiance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal or state program on a timely basis, A material weakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material nhoncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal or state program that is less severe than a material weakness
in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described
in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliiance is solely to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance and State of New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08. Accordingly,
this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC AC OGNTANTS /

o s

PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTA)(T NO. 962

December 31, 2020
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NOTE 1:

NOTE 2:

NOTE 3:

EXHIBIT "K-5"
Township of Union School District
Notes to the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards
and State Financial Assistance
Year Ended June 30, 2020

GENERAL

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state
financial assistance include federal and state activity of the Board of Education,
Township of Union School District. The Board of Education is defined in Note 1
to the Board's basic financial statements. All federal and state awards received
directly from the federal and state agencies, as well as federal awards and state
financial assistance passed through other government agencies is included on
the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financiais assistance.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of awards and federal awards and
state financial assistance are presented on the budgetary basis of accounting
with the exceptions of programs recorded in the food service fund, which are
presented using the accrual basis of accounting. These bases of accounting are
described in Note 1 of the Board's basic financial statements. The information in
this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance, Audits of States, L.ocal Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts
presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements. The
District has elected not to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate as
allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue
fund on a GAAP basis. Budgetary comparison statements or schedule (RSI) are
presented for the general fund and special revenue fund to demonstrate finance-
regulated legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted by law or grant
agreement to be recognized in the audit year, whereas for GAAP reporting,
revenue is not recognized until the subsequent year or when expenditures have
been made.

The General fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified
accrual basis with the exception of the revenue recognition of the last state aid
payment in the current budget year, which is mandated pursuant to N.J.S.A.
18A:22-44.2. For GAAP purposes, that payment is not recognized until the
subsequent budget year due to the state deferral and recording of the last state
aid payment in the subsequent year. The special revenue fund is presented in
the accompanying schedules on the grant accounting budgetary basis which
recoghizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related
revenue, whereas GAAP basis does not. The special revenue fund aiso
recognizes the last state aid payment in the current budget year, consistent with
N.J.S.A 18A:22-44.2.
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NOTE 3:

NOTE 4:

NOTE 5:

Township of Union School District
Notes to the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards
and State Financial Assistance
Year Ended June 30, 2020

RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is
$31,388.00 for the general fund and (823,397.00) for the special revenue fund.
See the notes to the required supplementary information for a reconciliation of
the budgetary basis to the modified accrual basis of accounting for the general
and special revenue funds. Federal awards and state financial assistance
revenues are reported in the Board’s basic financial statements on a GAAP basis
as follows:

Federa! State Total

General Fund $186,220 $56,079,115 $56,265,335
Special Revenue Fund 3,838,363 3,125,108 6,963,469
Debt Service Fund 114,510 114,510
Food Service Fund 1,400,859 27,562 1,428 421
Total Awards &

Financial Assistance $5,425 442 $59,346,293 $64 771,735
GAAP Adjustment (750,274) (41,736) (792,009)
Total: GAAP Basis $4,675,168 $58,304,558 $64,771,735

ELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts
reported in the related federal and state financial reports.

OTHER

Revenues and expenditures reported in the Food Distribution Program represent
current year value received and current year distributions respectively. The
amount reported as TPAF pension contributions, post-retirement medical
benefits and long-term disability insurance represents the amount paid by the
state on behalf of the district for the year ended June 30, 2020. TPAF Social
Security contributions represent the amount reimbursed by the state for the
employer's share of Social Security contributions for TPAF members for the year
ended June 30, 2020.
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Township of Union School District
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Section | — Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements

(1) Type of Auditor's Report Issued:

(2) internal Control Over Financial Reporting:
(a) Material weakness identified?

(b) Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered
to be material weaknesses?

(3) Noncompliance material to basic financial statements noted?
Federal Program(s)
(M Internal Control Over Major Federal Programs:

{(a) Material weakness identified?

{(a) Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered
to be material weaknesses?

(2) Type of Auditor's Report issued on compliance for major federal
program(s)?

(3) Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance?

(4) Identification of Major Federal Program(s):
Program CFDA
E.S.E.A:
Title | 84.010
Title I, Part A 84.367A

(5) Program Threshold Determination:
Type A Federal Program Threshold > $750,000.00
Type B Federal Program Threshold <= $750,000.00

(6) Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee under the Uniform Guidance?
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Unmodified

No

No

No

No

No

Unmodified

No

Yes



Township of Union School District
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Section | — Summary of Auditor's Results {Continued)

State Program(s)

(1) Internai Control Over Major State Programs:
(a) Material weakness identified? No

(b) Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered
to be material weaknesses? No

(2) Type of Auditor's Report issued on compliance for major state
program(s)? Unmodified

(3) Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in

accordance with N.J. OMB Circular 15-087 No
4) Identification of Major State Program(s):
Grant
Program Number

State Aid Cluster:

Equalization Aid 20-495-034-5120-078

Special Education Aid 20-495-034-5120-089

Security Aid 20-495-034-5120-084
Extraordinary Special Education Costs Aid 20-495-034-5120-044

Reimbursed TPAF Social Security Contributions  20-495-034-5094-003

(5)  Program Threshold Determination:
Type A State Program Threshold > $1,281,203
Type B State Program Threshold <= $1,281,203

(8) Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee under NJ OMB Circular 15-087 Yes
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Township of Union School District
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Section i — Financial Statement Audit — Reported Findings
Under Government Auditing Standards

Internal Control Findings

None Reported

Compliance Findings

None Reported

Section lll - Findings and Questioned Costs Relative to Major Federal and State Programs

Federal Programs — None Reported

State Programs — None Reported
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EXHIBIT "K-7"
Township of Union School District

Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings

There were no prior year findings.
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